
.,1*6&/,))�%2:/6�&/8%�/7' 
$%1��������������� 

 
��WK�$QQXDO�5HSRUW 
 
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH����� 



%(5($9(0(176 
 

-8/<������–�-81(����� 
 

7R�WKH�IDPLOLHV��IULHQGV�DQG�ORYHG�RQHV�RI�WKH�%RZOLQJ�DQG�6RFLDO�0HPEHUV�ZKR�SDVVHG�LQ�WKH�ODVW�\HDU��IURP�DOO 
LQYROYHG�ZLWK�.LQJVFOLII�%RZOV�&OXE�/LPLWHG��ZH�H[SUHVV�RXU�VDGQHVV�DQG�GHHS�V\PSDWK\�IRU�\RXU�ORVV� 

 
7KH\�ZLOO�EH�JUHDWO\�PLVVHG 



%2$5'�2)�',5(&7256 

',5(&725 

%DUULH�%XWOHU 

',5(&725 

/DXULH�*LOOHVSLH 

',5(&725 

7RP�(DGLH 

&/8%�6(&5(7$5< 

3KLOOLS�.HOO\ 

'(387<�&+$,50$1 

3KLO�3HUNLVV 

&+$,50$1 

5D\�%UHHQ 

',5(&725 

%HYHQ�/DPE 

',5(&725 

-XOLH�2¶&RQQRU 



&+$,50$1¶6������5(3257 

$ ���������V�,�ZULWH�WKLV�UHSRUW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGLQJ����-XQH�������,�ZRQGHU�ZKHUH�WKH�\HDU�KDV 

 JRQH� 

 

$V�H[SHFWHG��WKH�FXUUHQW�%RDUG�KDV�HPEUDFHG�FKDQJH�DQG�DV�D�%RDUG�ZH�DUH�XQLWHG�DV�

ZH�QHJRWLDWH�WKH�&OXE¶V�ILQDQFLDO�IXWXUH�VXFFHVV��7KH�%RDUG�DQG�,�KDYH�EHHQ�IRFXVHG�RQ�

FUHDWLQJ�D�EHWWHU�&OXE��ZKLOVW�PDLQWDLQLQJ�RXU�ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ��DQG�KRZ�ZH�FDQ�FRQWLQXH�

WR�JURZ�WKH�EXVLQHVV�DQG�UHPDLQ�ILQDQFLDOO\�VXVWDLQDEOH�LQ�D�YHU\�FRPSHWLWLYH�PDUNHW�� 

 

,Q�UHODWLRQ�WR�WKH�&OXE¶V�ILQDQFLDO�UHVXOWV��,�ZLOO�OHDYH�WKLV�IRU�RXU�*HQHUDO�0DQDJHU�WR 

GHWDLO�LQ�KLV�UHSRUW� 

7KH�%RDUG��LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�0DQDJHPHQW��KDYH�EHHQ�ZRUNLQJ�KDUG�RQ�HQVXULQJ�RXU�IDFLOLWLHV�DUH�ZHOO�PDLQWDLQHG�

ZLWK�SURMHFWV�OLNH�WKH�SDLQWLQJ�RI�WKH�H[WHULRU�RI�WKH�&OXE��SUHSDUDWLRQ�DQG�SDLQWLQJ�RI�WKH�SDWKV�DQG�WKH�LQVWDOODWLRQ�RI�

WKH�QHZ�VHDWV�DQG�VKDGHV��WR�QDPH�D�IHZ��7KH�QHZ�VHDWV�DQG�VKDGHV�KDYH�EHHQ�LQVWDOOHG�DQG�ILQDQFLDOO\�VXSSRUWHG�

E\�RXU�0HQ¶V�DQG�:RPHQ¶V�FRPPLWWHHV��ZKLFK�LV�YHU\�PXFK�DSSUHFLDWHG��7KHVH�SURMHFWV�ZHUH�DOO�SDUW�RI�WKH�&OXE¶V�

6WUDWHJLF�3ODQQLQJ�DQG�$FWLRQ�/LVW�ZKLFK�WKH�%RDUG�ZRUN�WKURXJK�HDFK�PRQWK�DQG�LW�LV�SOHDVLQJ�WR�KDYH�EHHQ�LQ�D 

SRVLWLRQ�WR�³WLFN´�WKHP�RII�WKH�OLVW�DV�ZH�PRYH�IRUZDUG��3URMHFWV�OLNH�WKH�PDLQWHQDQFH�DQG�SDLQWLQJ�RI�WKH�SDWKV�KDV�

EHHQ�RQ�RXU�$FWLRQ�OLVW�IRU�D�QXPEHU�RI�\HDUV�DQG�ZDV�RULJLQDOO\�SXW�IRUZDUG�E\�7UHYRU�.LQJ�ZKHQ�KH�ZDV�D�YDOXDEOH�

PHPEHU�RI�WKH�%RDUG��EXW�GXH�WR�RWKHU�SULRULWLHV�WKLV�SURMHFW�KDV�RQO\�MXVW�EHHQ�FRPSOHWHG�DQG�,�DP�SOHDVHG�WR�VD\�WKDW�

LW�QRW�RQO\�ORRNV�JUHDW�EXW�DOVR�QRZ�SURYLGHV�RXU�PHPEHUV�DQG�JXHVWV�ZLWK�D�VDIHU�HQYLURQPHQW� 

 

7KH�H[WHULRU�SDLQWLQJ�KDV�FUHDWHG�SOHQW\�RI�FRQYHUVDWLRQ�DURXQG�WKH�&OXE�DQG�WKH�%RDUG�LV�YHU\�SOHDVHG�ZLWK�WKH�HQG�

UHVXOW��:H�ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�WDNH�WKLV�RSSRUWXQLW\�WR�WKDQN�³'R�LW�(DV\´�SDLQWLQJ�ZKR�GLG�D�JUHDW�MRE��7KHVH�ZRUNV�LQFOXGHG�D�

ORW�RI�UXVW�SUHYHQWLRQ�ZRUNV�DQG�ZLWK�WKH�PDLQWHQDQFH�SURJUDP�LQ�SODFH�ZH�KRSH�WKHVH�ZRUNV�ZLOO�ODVW�DW�OHDVW���\HDUV��

7KH�FRORXU�KDV�DOVR�EHHQ�D�WRSLF�RI�GLVFXVVLRQ�DQG�WKH�%RDUG�DQG�0DQDJHPHQW�ZHUH�JXLGHG�E\�SURIHVVLRQDO�DGYLFH�

EHIRUH�GHFLGLQJ�RQ�WKH�ILQDO�FRORXUV��ZKLFK�ZH�EHOLHYH�ORRNV�JUHDW�IRU�RXU�&OXE� 

 

7KH�%RDUG�KDV�DOVR�DSSURYHG�IRU�D�PXUDO�WR�EH�SDLQWHG�RQ�WKH�QRUWKHUQ�ZDOO�RI�WKH�JUHHQNHHSHUV�VKHG�ZKLFK�ZLOO�VKRZ�

FDVH�RXU�JUHDW�EHDFK�DQG�&OXE�IURP�D�GLIIHUHQW�DQJOH��7KLV�SURMHFW�ZLOO�EH�FRPSOHWHG�LQ�HDUO\�6HSWHPEHU�� 

 

.HHSLQJ�RXU�PHPEHUV�LQIRUPHG�KDV�FRQWLQXHG�WR�EH�DQ�LPSRUWDQW�SDUW�RI�WKH�%RDUG¶V�DJHQGD�DQG�'LUHFWRU��7RP�(DGLH��

KDV�EHHQ�WDVNHG�ZLWK�WKLV�UROH��,�WKDQN�7RP�IRU�KLV�FRQWLQXHG�GHGLFDWLRQ�WR�WKLV�MRE�DV�ZH�NHHS�\RX�DOO�ZHOO�LQIRUPHG��

7RP�KDV�DOVR�EHHQ�ZRUNLQJ�YHU\�FORVHO\�ZLWK�RXU�:RPHQ¶V�DQG�0HQ¶V�&OXEV�LQ�XSGDWLQJ�RXU�%\-/DZV�WR�EULQJ�WKHP�XS�

WR�GDWH��:H�KRSH�WKLV�ZLOO�EH�FRPSOHWHG�EHIRUH�&KULVWPDV�� 

 

0RVW�PHPEHUV�ZRXOG�KDYH�QRWLFHG�WKH�QHZ�GHILEULOODWRU�DW�RXU�PDLQ�DQG�ERZOHU¶V�HQWUDQFHV�DQG�WKHVH�YHU\�LPSRUWDQW�

SLHFHV�RI�HTXLSPHQW�KDYH�EHHQ�SXW�LQ�SODFH�WR�DVVLVW�LQ�PHGLFDO�HPHUJHQFLHV��,�WKDQN�'LUHFWRU��/DXULH�*LOOHVSLH��ZKR�

ZDV�LQVWUXPHQWDO�LQ�WKH�XSJUDGH��RQ�EHKDOI�RI�RXU�PHPEHUV� 

 

2XU�GUHVV�FRGH�ZDV�UHYLHZHG�IROORZLQJ�D�&OXEV16:�PHHWLQJ�DQG�ZRUNVKRS�ZKHUH�DOO�FOXEV�ZHUH�DGYLVHG�WR�PDNH�

FKDQJHV�WR�VRPH�YHU\�ROG�UXOHV��,W�ZDV�VWURQJO\�UHFRPPHQGHG�WKDW�FOXEV�QHHG�WR�FKDQJH�RU�ULVN�ORVLQJ�SDWURQV�WR�WKH�

ORFDO�KRWHOV�RU�VXUI�FOXEV��7KH�%RDUG�GLVFXVVHG�WKH�SURV�DQG�FRQV�EHIRUH�PDNLQJ�WKH�GHFLVLRQ�WR�LQWURGXFH�VRPH�

FKDQJHV�ZKLFK�QRZ�DOORZ�SDWURQV�WR�ZHDU�VLQJOHWV�DQG�FDSV��KDWV�LQWR�RXU�&OXE��ZLWK�UHVWULFWLRQV��7KHVH�FKDQJHV�KDYH�

EHHQ�YHU\�PXFK�ZHOFRPHG�E\�PDQ\�ZLWK�VRPH�PHPEHUV�UDLVLQJ�FRQFHUQV�RYHU�KRZ�WKLV�ZLOO�EH�PRQLWRUHG��2YHUDOO��WKH�

%RDUG�LV�KDSS\�WR�UHSRUW�WKDW�WKLV�GHFLVLRQ�KDV�EHHQ�ZHOO�DFFHSWHG�� 



0RVW�PHPEHUV�ZRXOG�QRW�EH�DZDUH�RI�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�ZRUN�RXU�*HQHUDO�0DQDJHU�KDV�SXW�LQ�WR�GHDOLQJ�ZLWK�&RXQFLO�WR 

REWDLQ�DSSURYDOV�IRU�RXU�%LVWUR�H[WHQVLRQ��0DVWHU�3ODQ��DQG�3RS-8S�%DU�RYHU�WKH�SDVW�IHZ�\HDUV��7KLV�KDV�EHHQ�D 

FKDOOHQJH�ZLWK�SOHQW\�RI�URDG�EORFNV�EXW�ZH�DUH�SOHDVHG�WR�DGYLVH�ZH�QRZ�KDYH�IXOO�DSSURYDOV�DQG�ZH�DUH�H[FLWHG 

PRYLQJ�IRUZDUG��7KH�3RS-8S�%DU�'$�ZDV�DSSURYHG�EDFN�LQ�'HFHPEHU������DIWHU�PRQWKV�RI�KDUG�ZRUN�SURYLGLQJ�H[WUD�

LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�UHSRUWV�DQG�ZH�QRZ�KDYH�DSSURYDO�WR�RSHUDWH�WKLV�DUHD���GD\V�SHU�ZHHN�XQWLO�����SP��ZLWK�VRPH 

5HVWULFWLRQV��:H�QRZ�FDQ�SURPRWH�WKLV�DUHD�IRU�IXQFWLRQV�DQG�FRUSRUDWH�HYHQWV�� 

 

,Q�UHODWLRQ�WR�WKH�0DVWHU�3ODQ�'$��WKLV�ZDV�DSSURYHG�LQ�0DUFK�WKLV�\HDU�DQG�QRZ�WKH�FORFN�LV�WLFNLQJ��6LQFH�WKH�DSSURYDO�

WKH�%RDUG�KDV�QRW�PDGH�DQ\�IXUWKHU�GHFLVLRQ�RQ�WKH�IXWXUH�GHYHORSPHQW�EXW�ZLOO�FRPPHQFH�GLVFXVVLRQV�LQ�ODWH������RQ�

KRZ�WKLV�SURMHFW�FDQ�EH�VWDJHG�DQG�WLPH�IUDPHV��,W�LV�QRW�DQWLFLSDWHG�WKDW�DQ\�PDMRU�ZRUNV�ZLOO�EH�FDUULHG�RXW�LQ�WKH�QH[W�

IHZ�\HDUV��,W�LV�LPSRUWDQW�WR�QRWH�WKDW�WKH�%RDUG�LV�IXOO\�FRPPLWWHG�WR�WKH�IXWXUH�YLDELOLW\�RI�WKH�&OXE�DQG�WKLV�PDVWHU�SODQ�

LV�YLWDO�IRU�IXWXUH�JURZWK� 

 

2XU�*HQHUDO�0DQDJHU�KDV�DSSOLHG�WR�WKH�2IILFH�RI�/LTXRU�DQG�*DPLQJ�WR�FKDQJH�RXU�FXUUHQW�OLFHQFH�DSSURYDO�IRU�RXU�

PDLQ�EDU�DUHD��7KLV�DSSOLFDWLRQ��LI�DSSURYHG��ZLOO�DOORZ�PLQRUV�WR�HQMR\�RXU�PDLQ�ORXQJH�IDFLOLWLHV�LQ�WKH�FRPSDQ\�RI�DQ�

DGXOW��ZLWK�VRPH�UHVWULFWLRQV�DQG�UXOHV�WR�EH�SXW�LQ�SODFH�WR�SURWHFW�WKH�LQWHJULW\�RI�RXU�&OXE�DQG�PHPEHUV��:H�DUH 

KRSLQJ�WR�KDYH�WKLV�DSSURYDO�EHIRUH�RXU�EXV\�&KULVWPDV�KROLGD\�SHULRG�� 

 

.HHSLQJ�XS�WR�FXUUHQW�VWDQGDUGV�DQG�WHFKQRORJ\�LV�RIWHQ�GLIILFXOW��KRZHYHU��WKH�%RDUG�WKLV�\HDU�KDYH�PRYHG�ZLWK�WKH�

WLPHV�DQG�DUH�QRZ�XVLQJ�PRGHUQ�PHDQV�RI�UHFHLYLQJ�RXU�%RDUG�UHSRUWV�HOHFWURQLFDOO\��7KLV�WUDQVLWLRQ�KDV�EHHQ 

FKDOOHQJLQJ�IRU�VRPH�EXW�ZH�EHOLHYH�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�ZLOO�VDYH�WKH�&OXE�VXEVWDQWLDO�PRQH\�DQG�WLPH�DV�ZH�PRYH 

IRUZDUG� 

 

&DWHULQJ�KDV�EHHQ�D�UHDO�LVVXH�IRU�WKH�%RDUG�RYHU�WKH�SDVW�IHZ�\HDUV�DQG�ZH�KDYH�IDFHG�SOHQW\�RI�FKDOOHQJHV�RYHU�WKH�

SDVW�WZHOYH�PRQWKV�LQ�WKLV�DUHD��7KH�%RDUG�ODVW�\HDU�DSSRLQWHG�D�FRQVXOWDQW�WR�UHYLHZ�RXU�FDWHULQJ�RSHUDWLRQV�DQG�D�

QXPEHU�RI�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV�ZHUH�SURYLGHG�LQ�KLV�UHSRUW�ZKLFK�SURYLGHG�WKH�%RDUG�DQG�0DQDJHPHQW�ZLWK�VRPH�YHU\�

KDUG�GHFLVLRQV�WR�PDNH��'XULQJ�WKLV�SURFHVV�RXU�([HFXWLYH�&KHI��7RQ\�$[HOE\��GHFLGHG�WR�VWHS�GRZQ�IURP�KLV�SRVLWLRQ�

DQG�ZH�WKDQN�7RQ\�IRU�KLV�FRQWULEXWLRQ�RYHU�WKH�SUHYLRXV�IHZ�\HDUV�DV�RXU�([HFXWLYH�&KHI��7KLV�WKHQ�FUHDWHG�IXUWKHU�

LVVXHV�DQG�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�IRU�WKH�&OXE�EXW�WKH�WLPLQJ�ZDV�QRW�JUHDW�OHDGLQJ�LQWR�RXU�EXV\�&KULVWPDV�SHULRG��2XU�*HQHUDO�

0DQDJHU�ZLOO�SURYLGH�PRUH�GHWDLO�LQ�KLV�UHSRUW�RQ�RXU�&DWHULQJ�RSHUDWLRQV� 

 

6WDIILQJ�LV�QHYHU�HDV\�LQ�KRVSLWDOLW\��2XU�&OXE�LV�YHU\�IRUWXQDWH�WR�KDYH�VRPH�JUHDW�VWDII�DQG�WKH�%RDUG�LV�YHU\�SURXG�RI�

RXU�SURIHVVLRQDO�WHDP�ZKR�DOO�ZRUN�KDUG�WR�SURYLGH�JUHDW�VHUYLFH�WR�RXU�PHPEHUV�DQG�ZKR�DUH�GHGLFDWHG�LQ�WKHLU�UROHV�� 

 

2XU�LQYHVWPHQW�LQWR�IXQFWLRQV�LV�SD\LQJ�GLYLGHQGV�ZLWK�RYHU����ZHGGLQJV�EHLQJ�ERRNHG�LQ������DQG�DOUHDG\�ZH�KDYH�

RYHU����ERRNHG�IRU�������:HGGLQJV�DUH�QRW�WKH�RQO\�IXQFWLRQV�ZH�GR��2XU�)XQFWLRQV�&RRUGLQDWRU��&LQG\�0F*RYHUQ��

KDV�EHHQ�ZRUNLQJ�H[WUHPHO\�KDUG�LQ�HQVXULQJ�WKH�URRP�LV�EHLQJ�XVHG�DV�PXFK�DV�SRVVLEOH�DQG�ZH�DUH�SOHDVHG�ZLWK�WKH�

ILQDQFLDO�UHVXOWV�FRPLQJ�IURP�WKHVH�IXQFWLRQV��2Q�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�%RDUG�ZH�WKDQN�&LQG\�DQG�KHU�WHDP�IRU�WKHLU�GHGLFDWLRQ�

DQG�HIIRUWV� 

 

0DUNHWLQJ�LV�DQRWKHU�DUHD�WKDW�WKH�&OXE�KDV�EHHQ�VWURQJO\�IRFXVHG�RQ�DQG�ZH�WKDQN�$OL�$OGHU�IRU�KHU�RQJRLQJ 

FRPPLWPHQW�WR�WKH�&OXE�DQG�KHU�UROH��$OL�KDV�EHHQ�LQVWUXPHQWDO�LQ�RXU�PDUNHWLQJ�DQG�EXLOGLQJ�RXU�EUDQG�DQG�RQ�EHKDOI�

RI�WKH�%RDUG�,�WKDQN�$OL�IRU�KHU�GHGLFDWHG�VXSSRUW�RI�WKH�%RDUG�DQG�&OXE�� 

 

7KH�%RDUG�KDV�EHHQ�FRQWLQXLQJ�WR�ZRUN�FORVHO\�ZLWK�RXU�0HQ¶V�DQG�:RPHQ¶V�FRPPLWWHHV�DQG�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�%RDUG�,�

ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�WKDQN�3UHVLGHQW�5RE\Q�:LFNEROG�DQG�KHU�H[HFXWLYH�PDQDJHPHQW�FRPPLWWHH�IRU�WKHLU�KDUG�ZRUN�RYHU�WKH�

SDVW�\HDU�DQG�IRU�WKH�FRQWLQXDO�VXSSRUW�DQG�ZRUNLQJ�ZLWK�WKH�%RDUG�GXULQJ�WKLV�WLPH��,�ZRXOG�DOVR�OLNH�WR�WKDQN�WKH 

FRPPLWWHH�IRU�WKHLU�ILQDQFLDO�FRPPLWPHQW�WRZDUGV�WKH�XSJUDGH�RI�WKH�VHDWLQJ�DQG�VKDGHV�DURXQG�WKH�JUHHQV��7KH� 



:RPHQ�SURYLGHG�������IURP�WKHLU�LQYHVWPHQW�DFFRXQW�WRZDUGV�WKHVH�ZRUNV�ZKLFK�ZLOO�EHQHILW�DOO�ERZOLQJ�PHPEHUV�

DQG�,�VD\�WKDQN�\RX�IRU�WKHLU�VXSSRUW�� 

 

7KH�0HQ¶V�FRPPLWWHH��OHDG�E\�3UHVLGHQW�3DXO�&URPSWRQ��KDV�DOVR�EHHQ�ZRUNLQJ�YHU\�KDUG�WR�FRQWLQXH�WR�SURYLGH�RXU�

PDOH�ERZOLQJ�PHPEHUV�ZLWK�VRPH�JUHDW�ERZOV�GD\V�DQG�HYHQWV�DQG�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�DOO�PHPEHUV�ZH�VD\�WKDQN�\RX�WR�\RX�

DOO�IRU�\RXU�RQJRLQJ�GHGLFDWLRQ�DQG�FRPPLWPHQW�WR�RXU�PHPEHUV��7KH�0HQ¶V�&OXE¶V�FRQWULEXWLRQ�RI���������WRZDUGV�WKH�

VHDWV�DQG�VKDGHV�LV�DOVR�PXFK�DSSUHFLDWHG��2Q�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�%RDUG�DQG�DOO�PHPEHUV�ZH�VD\�WKDQN�\RX�IRU�WKLV 

VXSSRUW��LW�LV�YHU\�PXFK�DSSUHFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKHVH�IXQGV�FRPLQJ�RXW�RI�WKHLU�LQYHVWPHQW�DFFRXQW�ZKLFK�ZDV�VHW�XS�IRU�VXFK�

SXUSRVHV� 

 

,�NQRZ�ERWK�VHFWLRQ�3UHVLGHQWV�ZLOO�GLVFXVV�WKH�&OXE�FKDPSLRQVKLSV�DQG�UHVXOWV��VR�,�ZLOO�QRW�JR�LQWR�DQ\�GHWDLO�EXW�ZLOO�

VD\�FRQJUDWXODWLRQV�WR�DOO�ZLQQHUV�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�%RDUG��3HQQDQWV�DQG�FKDPSLRQVKLSV�SOD\�DQ�LPSRUWDQW�UROH�LQ�DOO�

VSRUWLQJ�FOXEV�DQG�ZH�WKDQN�DOO�ERZOHUV�IRU�VXSSRUWLQJ�DQG�SOD\LQJ�LQ�WKHVH�HYHQWV� 

 

+RZ�WLPHV�FKDQJH��0DQ\�FOXEV�DUH�VWUXJJOLQJ�WR�PDLQWDLQ�ERZOLQJ�QXPEHUV�DQG�KDYH�LQVWLJDWHG�PL[HG�HYHQWV�WR 

PDLQWDLQ�SOD\LQJ�QXPEHUV�RQ�PDLQ�ERZOLQJ�GD\V��LQFOXGLQJ�ZHHNHQGV��:KLOVW�ZH�KDYH�JRRG�QXPEHUV��FRQFHUQV�ZHUH�

UDLVHG�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�PDNLQJ�RXU�JUHHQV�DYDLODEOH�RQ�6DWXUGD\V�IRU�ZRPHQ�WR�SOD\�ZKR�FRXOG�QRW�QRUPDOO\�SOD\�GXULQJ�

WKH�ZHHN��$�QXPEHU�RI�PHHWLQJV�DQG�GLVFXVVLRQV�ZHUH�KHOG�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�WKLV�LVVXH�DQG�WKH�.0%&�DJUHHG�WR�RIIHU�RXU�

ZRPHQ�WKH�RSSRUWXQLW\�WR�SOD\�RQ�6DWXUGD\�DIWHUQRRQV�LQ�D�VHSDUDWH�FRPSHWLWLRQ�ZKHQ�JUHHQ�VSDFH�ZDV�DYDLODEOH���

7KLV�SURYLVLRQ�LV�QRW�QHZ�DQG�KDV�EHHQ�LQ�WKH�%\-/DZV�IRU�VRPH�\HDUV�DQG�ZLWK�WKH�VXSSRUW�RI�RXU�0HQ
V�FRPPLWWHH�ZH�

DUH�QRZ�VHHLQJ�RXU�ODGLHV�HQMR\LQJ�WKH�JUHHQV�RQ�PRVW�6DWXUGD\�DIWHUQRRQV��:KLOVW�WKLV�LVVXH�KDV�EHHQ�SROLWLFDO��WKH�

%RDUG¶V�YLHZ�LV�FOHDU��WKH�JUHHQV�DUH�H[SHQVLYH�WR�PDLQWDLQ�DQG�WKH�PRUH�SOD\HUV�ZH�FDQ�KDYH�WR�XWLOLVH�WKHP�WKH 

EHWWHU�LW�LV��:H�WKDQN�ERWK�H[HFXWLYH�FRPPLWWHHV�IRU�ZRUNLQJ�WRJHWKHU�RQ�WKLV�LPSRUWDQW�LVVXH�WR�JHW�WR�VRPH�FRPPRQ�

JURXQG�� 

 

%DUHIRRW�ERZOV�LV�DOVR�DQ�LPSRUWDQW�SDUW�RI�RXU�EXVLQHVV�ZLWK�DOO�LQFRPH�JRLQJ�WRZDUGV�WKH�JUHHQV�WR�KHOS�RIIVHW�RXU�

RSHUDWLRQDO�FRVWV��,�ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�WKDQN�RXU�'HSXW\�&KDLUPDQ��3KLO�3HUNLVV�DQG�KLV�WHDP�RI�YROXQWHHUV�ZKR�KDYH�DOO�

ZRUNHG�KDUG�RQ�HQVXULQJ�RXU�EDUHIRRW�ERZOHUV�KDYH�D�JUHDW�H[SHULHQFH�RQ�WKH�JUHHQV�� 

 

0L[HG�%RZOV�KDV�EHHQ�D�WRSLF�RI�FRQFHUQ�RYHU�WKH�SDVW�IHZ�PRQWKV�DQG�ILUVWO\�,�ZLVK�WR�WKDQN�5DHZ\Q�/LGGLQJWRQ�DQG�

KHU�FRPPLWWHH�IRU�WKHLU�YDOXDEOH�FRPPLWPHQW�ZLWK�PL[HG�ERZOV�RYHU�PDQ\�\HDUV��8QIRUWXQDWHO\��WKH�0L[HG�FRPPLWWHH�

UHVLJQHG�IROORZLQJ�VRPH�LQWHUQDO�SROLWLFDO�FRQFHUQV�DQG�WKH�%RDUG�KDV�EHHQ�VXSSRUWLQJ�WKH�H[LVWLQJ�ERRNLQJV�DQG�ZLOO�

FDOO�IRU�QRPLQDWLRQV�WR�ILOO�WKH�FRPPLWWHH�SRVLWLRQV�LQ�1RYHPEHU��DIWHU�WKH�&OXE�$*0�� 

 

7KH�:RPHQ¶V�6WDWH�3HQQDQW�ILQDOV�ZDV�D�JUHDW��ZHOO�UXQ�HYHQW��ZLWK�SODQQLQJ�VWDUWLQJ�RYHU����PRQWKV�DJR�RQFH�RXU�

&OXE�UHFHLYHG�FRQILUPDWLRQ�RXU�KRVWLQJ�SURSRVDO�ZDV�DFFHSWHG�E\�:RPHQ¶V�%RZOV�16:��7KLV�KDV�EHHQ�D�ELJ�MRE 

FRRUGLQDWLQJ�IRXU�FOXEV�DQG�YROXQWHHUV�WR�VKRZFDVH�WKH�7ZHHG�&RDVW�&OXEV�DQG�LW�ZRXOG�QRW�KDYH�EHHQ�SRVVLEOH 

ZLWKRXW�WKH�GHGLFDWLRQ�DQG�KDUG�ZRUN�RI�RXU�*HQHUDO�0DQDJHU�DQG�WKH�ZRUNLQJ�FRPPLWWHH�ZKR�SXW�LQ�PDQ\�KRXUV�WR�

HQVXUH�LWV�VXFFHVV��2XU�&OXE�VKRZHG�WUXH�&OXE�VSLULW�ZLWK����YROXQWHHUV�SXWWLQJ�XS�WKHLU�KDQGV�WR�RIIHU�VXSSRUW�ZKLFK�

ZDV�IDQWDVWLF��9ROXQWHHUV�FRYHUHG�D�ZLGH�UDQJH�RI�GXWLHV�IURP�/LDLVRQ�2IILFHUV�WR�%%4�FRRNV�DQG�ZH�WKDQN�HYHU\�RQH�

RI�\RX�IRU�\RXU�VXSSRUW�DQG�KDUG�ZRUN�WR�HQVXUH�WKLV�ZDV�D�JUHDW�HYHQW��:H�ZLOO�DJDLQ�EH�KRVWLQJ�WKLV�HYHQW�LQ������DQG�

SODQQLQJ�LV�XQGHUZD\�DOUHDG\��$JDLQ��RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�%RDUG��ZH�FRQJUDWXODWH�RXU�:RPHQ¶V�&OXE�DQG�WKDQN�DOO 

YROXQWHHUV�DQG�PHPEHUV�IRU�PDNLQJ�WKLV�D�JUHDW�HYHQW�WKDW�VKRZFDVHG�RXU�JUHDW�&OXE�WR�WKH�ZLGHU�ERZOLQJ�FRPPXQLW\�� 

 

&OXEV�GRQ¶W�UXQ�WKHPVHOYHV�DQG�,�ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�WKDQN�RXU�*HQHUDO�0DQDJHU��3KLO�.HOO\��ZKR�LV�D�ZHOO�RUJDQLVHG 

SURIHVVLRQDO�DQG�ZHOO�UHVSHFWHG�PDQDJHU�LQ�WKH�LQGXVWU\��7KH�%RDUG�ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�WKDQN�3KLO�.HOO\�IRU�KLV�JXLGDQFH�DQG�

SURIHVVLRQDOLVP�GXULQJ�WKH�SDVW�\HDU�DQG�DV�D�%RDUG�ZH�KDYH������IXOO�VXSSRUW�LQ�3KLO�DV�WKH�*HQHUDO�0DQDJHU�DQG�

KLV�WHDP�RI�VWDII��:H�ORRN�IRUZDUG�WR�ZRUNLQJ�ZLWK�WKHP�DJDLQ�LQ������ 



,�ZRXOG�DOVR�WKDQN�P\�IHOORZ�'LUHFWRUV�IRU�WKHLU�HIIRUWV�RYHU�WKH�SDVW�\HDU�LQ�ZKDW�KDV�EHHQ�SROLWLFDO�DQG�FKDOOHQJLQJ��$OO�

'LUHFWRUV�KDYH�ZRUNHG�KDUG�WR�IXOILO�WKHLU�UROHV�DQG�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�PHPEHUV�DQG�ZH�DUH�ORRNLQJ 

IRUZDUG�WR�FRQWLQXLQJ�WR�ZRUN�KDUG�WR�UHSUHVHQW�WKH�PHPEHUV�LQ������ 

 

)LQDOO\��,�ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�WKDQN�\RX��RXU�PHPEHUV��&OXEV�DUH�D�SODFH�WR�PHHW��JUHHW�DQG�IRUP�IULHQGVKLSV�DQG�RXU�&OXE�

RIIHUV�D�VDIH�DQG�IULHQGO\�HQYLURQPHQW�IRU�DOO�WR�HQMR\��,�NQRZ�PRVW�PHPEHUV�WDNH�IXOO�DGYDQWDJH�RI�WKH�PHPEHU¶V 

GLVFRXQWV�DQG�RIIHUV�DQG�ZH�KRSH�WKDW�\RX�FRQWLQXH�WR�HQMR\�RXU�IDFLOLWLHV��$V�D�PHPEHU��\RX�UHFHLYH�PDQ\�EHQHILWV�

VXFK�DV�GLVFRXQWV�RQ�IRRG�DQG�EHYHUDJHV��OR\DOW\�SRLQWV��JUHDW�HQWHUWDLQPHQW��JUHDW�PHPEHU¶V�RQO\�SURPRWLRQV�DQG�

PRUH�DQG�ZH�DJDLQ�WKDQN�\RX�IRU�\RXU�VXSSRUW�� 

 

7R�WKRVH�PHPEHUV�ZKR�PD\�KDYH�ORVW�D�ORYHG�RQH�GXULQJ�WKH�SDVW�\HDU��RXU�WKRXJKWV�DUH�ZLWK�\RX�DOO�DQG�WKRVH 

PHPEHUV�ZKR�DUH�XQZHOO�DQG�VXIIHULQJ�PHGLFDOO\�ZH�ZLVK�\RX�DOO�D�VSHHG\�UHFRYHU\� 

 

,�ORRN�IRUZDUG�WR�VHHLQJ�\RX�DW�WKH�&OXE 

 

5D\�%UHHQ 

&KDLUPDQ�RI�WKH�%RDUG� 



*(1(5$/�0$1$*(5¶6�5(3257 

$ ��������V�WKH�&KDLUPDQ�KDV�VWDWHG��ZKHUH�KDV�WKH�\HDU�JRQH"�,W�RQO\�VHHPV�OLNH�D�VKRUW�� 

�����������WLPH�DJR�,�SUHVHQWHG�P\�UHSRUW�IRU������DQG�KHUH�,�DP�SUHVHQWLQJ�P\�UHSRUW�IRU�

WKH���WK�$QQXDO�*HQHUDO�0HHWLQJ�IRU�.LQJVFOLII�%RZOV�&OXE�/WG� 

 

7KH�JOREDO�ILQDQFLDO�HQYLURQPHQW�KDV�FHUWDLQO\�EHHQ�RQ�D�UROOHU�FRDVWHU�RYHU�WKH�ODVW�\HDU�

DQG�WKH�KRVSLWDOLW\�LQGXVWU\�KDV�QRW�EHHQ�VSDUHG��:KLOVW�JRYHUQPHQWV�ZRUOGZLGH�IOH[�WKHLU�

PXVFOHV�WR�VKRZ�ZKR�LV�WKH�EHVW�OHDGHU��WKLV�GLVSOD\�RI�VWUHQJWK�RU�VWXSLGLW\�FUHDWHV�D�

IORZ�RQ�HIIHFW�HFRQRPLFDOO\�ZRUOGZLGH�DQG�$XVWUDOLD�KDV�DOVR�EHHQ�FDXJKW�LQ�WKH�PLGGOH���

7KLV�\HDU�ZH�H[SHULHQFHG�DQRWKHU�)HGHUDO�(OHFWLRQ�ZKLFK�DOZD\V�FUHDWHV�XQFHUWDLQW\�LQ�

WKH�FRPPXQLW\�ZLWK�SHRSOH�EHLQJ�YHU\�FDUHIXO�LQ�WKHLU�VSHQGLQJ�KDELWV�ZLWK�WKH� 

XQFHUWDLQW\�RI�ZKDW�FKDQJHV�*RYHUQPHQWV�ZHUH�JRLQJ�WR�PDNH�LQ�WKH�IXWXUH��,QWHUHVW�UDWHV�KDYH�QHYHU�EHHQ�VR�ORZ��

ZKLFK�LV�JRRG�IRU�VRPH�EXW�H[WUHPHO\�EDG�IRU�RWKHUV�VXFK�DV�RXU�VHOI-IXQGHG�UHWLUHHV�DQG�EXVLQHVVHV�ZKR�DUH�QRW 

JHWWLQJ�DQ\�UHWXUQV�RQ�WKHLU�LQYHVWPHQWV��7KLV��FRPELQHG�ZLWK�LQFUHDVLQJ�FRVWV�LQ�OLYLQJ�H[SHQVHV��ZDJHV�DQG�JHQHUDO�

VHUYLFHV��LPSDFWV�RQ�KRXVHKROG�LQFRPHV�DQG�UHGXFHV�WKH�EDVLF�DOORZDQFH�IRU�HQWHUWDLQPHQW�� 

 

:KLOVW�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�HQYLURQPHQW�KDV�EHHQ�FKDOOHQJLQJ��RXU�&OXE�KDV�EHHQ�WUDGLQJ�ZHOO�ZLWK�RXU�FDVK�IORZ�EHLQJ�VWURQJ�

WR�DOORZ�WKH�&OXE�WR�FRQWLQXH�WR�PDLQWDLQ�RXU�PDLQWHQDQFH�SURJUDP�DQG�WR�ZRUN�WKURXJK�RXU�NH\�LWHPV�RQ�RXU�DFWLRQ�OLVW�

DQG�VWUDWHJLF�SODQ��)LQDQFLDOO\�WKH�&OXE¶V�WUDGLQJ�SURILW�RI������������DIWHU�������������LQ�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�LV�GRZQ�RQ�WKH�

�����UHVXOW�RI�����������7KLV�LV�D�UHVXOW�RI�UHGXFLQJ�RXU�GHEW�IRU�WKH�ELVWUR�UHQRYDWLRQV�WKDW�ZHUH�FRPSOHWHG�LQ�-XO\�

�����IURP�FDVK�IORZ�ZKLOVW�VWLOO�EHLQJ�LQ�D�SRVLWLRQ�WR�FRPSOHWH�D�QXPEHU�RI�RWKHU�PDMRU�ZRUNV�� 

 

7KH�ILUVW���PRQWKV�RI�WUDGLQJ��IURP�-XO\������WR�0DUFK�������ZHUH�YHU\�VWURQJ�ZLWK�WKH�&OXE�KROGLQJ�D�WUDGLQJ�SURILW�RI�

������������EHIRUH�H[SHULHQFLQJ�WZR�PRQWKV�RI�ORVHV��ZKLFK�ZDV�DOO�JDPLQJ�UHODWHG��$SULO�DQG�0D\�UHGXFHG�RXU 

WUDGLQJ�SURILWV�E\�������������DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�DQ�LQFUHDVH�LQ�JDPLQJ�SD\RXWV�DQG�VORZHU�WUDGLQJ�IRU�WKLV�SHULRG�� 

 

7KH�%RDUG¶V�RQJRLQJ�FRPPLWPHQW�WR�RXU�PHPEHUV�FRQWLQXHV�ZLWK�������������EHLQJ�SURYLGHG�LQ�PHPEHU¶V�H[SHQVHV��

GLVFRXQWV��SURPRWLRQV��UDIIOHV��DGYHUWLVLQJ�DQG�HQWHUWDLQPHQW�GXULQJ�WKH�ODVW�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU��7KLV�LV�XS������������RQ�

WKH�SUHYLRXV�\HDU�DQG�LQFOXGHV�WKH�H[WUD�H[SHQVHV�UHODWHG�WR�RXU�IDPLO\�IXQ�GD\�HYHQWV��HQWHUWDLQPHQW�IRU�WKH�3RS-8S�

%DU�GXULQJ�WKH�KROLGD\�SHULRGV�DQG�PDMRU�SURPRWLRQV��7KH�%RDUG�KDYH�UHYLHZHG�WKLV�FRPPLWPHQW�DQG�DUH�ORRNLQJ�DW�

ZD\V�RI�UHGXFLQJ�WKLV�H[SHQVH�ZKLOVW�PDLQWDLQLQJ�PHPEHUVKLS�YDOXH�� 

 

&DWHULQJ�LV�DOZD\V�FKDOOHQJLQJ�DQG�ZH�KDYH�EHHQ�ZRUNLQJ�WKURXJK�D�QXPEHU�RI�FRQFHUQV�LV�WKLV�DUHD��7KH�%RDUG 

DSSRLQWHG�D�FRQVXOWDQW�WR�UHYLHZ�RXU�FDWHULQJ�RSHUDWLRQV�LQ������DQG��IROORZLQJ�WKLV�UHYLHZ��D�QXPEHU�RI�LVVXHV�ZHUH�

LGHQWLILHG�ZKLFK�ZH�KDYH�EHHQ�ZRUNLQJ�WKURXJK�WKHP�WKH�SDVW�\HDU��'XULQJ�WKLV�SURFHVV�RXU�([HFXWLYH�&KHI��7RQ\ 

$[HOE\�GHFLGHG�WR�VWDQG�GRZQ�IURP�KLV�SRVLWLRQ�WR�DOORZ�WKH�&OXE�WR�LPSOHPHQW�D�QXPEHU�RI�UHTXLUHG�FKDQJHV�ZLWK�RXU�

FDWHULQJ��7KH�%RDUG�DQG�0DQDJHPHQW�WKDQN�7RQ\�IRU�KLV�YDOXDEOH�FRQWULEXWLRQ�DQG�GHGLFDWLRQ�WR�KLV�UROH�RYHU�PDQ\�

\HDUV�DQG�ZLVK�KLP�ZHOO�LQ�KLV�IXWXUH�HQGHDYRXUV�� 

 

7KH�&OXE�WKHQ�DSSRLQWHG�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�WR�ILOO�LQ�XQWLO�D�QHZ�([HFXWLYH�&KHI�ZDV�DSSRLQWHG�DQG�WR�DVVLVW�LQ�WKH 

DSSOLFDWLRQ�SURFHVV��'XULQJ�WKLV�SURFHVV�WKH�&OXE�DSSRLQWHG�([HFXWLYH�&KHI��0DWW�.HPS��ZKR�ERXJKW�D�ZLGH�UDQJH�RI�

H[SHULHQFH�DQG�NQRZOHGJH�WR�WKH�&OXE¶V�FDWHULQJ��0DWW��GXULQJ�KLV�VKRUW�WLPH�DW�RXU�&OXE��LPSOHPHQWHG�D�QXPEHU�RI�

NH\�FKDQJHV�LQ�RXU�FDWHULQJ�DQG�LQWURGXFHG�D�QHZ�PHQX�ZKLFK�ZDV�YHU\�ZHOO�UHFHLYHG�DQG�VXSSRUWHG��,W�KDV�EHHQ�YHU\�

SOHDVLQJ�WR�VHH�LQFRPH�LQFUHDVH�GXH�WR�D�ODUJH�LQFUHDVH�LW�SDWURQDJH��1RW�RQO\�GLG�0DWW�SURYLGH�JUHDW�IRRG�KH 

FRQFHQWUDWHG�RQ�WKH�VHUYLFH�DV�ZHOO��E\�ZRUNLQJ�ZLWK�RXU�VWDII�WR�LPSURYH�DOO�RI�WKH�EDVLF�VHUYLFH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�RXU�

PHPEHUV�DQG�JXHVWV��,Q�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�LPSURYLQJ�WKH�ELVWUR�RSHUDWLRQV��ZH�KDYH�DOVR�EHHQ�FRQFHQWUDWLQJ�RQ�RXU� 



&RIIHH�6KRS�E\�HPSOR\LQJ�WZR�JUHDW�%UD]LOLDQ�3DVWU\�&KHIV�ZKR�SURYLGH�VRPH�IDQWDVWLF��WDVW\�WUHDWV�WR�HQMR\�ZLWK�D�

FRIIHH�LQ�RXU�QHZO\�UHQRYDWHG�ELVWUR��$JDLQ��LW�LV�SOHDVLQJ�WR�VHH�VDOHV�LPSURYLQJ�LQ�WKLV�GHSDUWPHQW�DQG�ZH�WKDQN�DOO�

VWDII�IRU�WKHLU�HIIRUWV�� 

 

8QIRUWXQDWHO\��0DWW�ZDV�DSSURDFKHG�E\�D�ORFDO�5HVWDXUDQW�JURXS�ZKR�PDGH�KLP�D�JUHDW�RIIHU�WR�RYHUVHH�D�JURXS�RI�

UHVWDXUDQWV��ZKLFK�KH�DFFHSWHG��:H�WKDQN�0DWW�IRU�KLV�LQFUHGLEOH�FRQWULEXWLRQ�WR�RXU�FDWHULQJ�LQ�WKH�VL[�PRQWKV�KH�ZDV�

ZLWK�XV�ZKLFK�KDV�EHHQ�DPD]LQJ��QRW�RQO\�LQ�RXU�IRRG�RIIHULQJ�EXW�WKH�OHDGHUVKLS��WUDLQLQJ�DQG�JXLGDQFH�KH�SURYLGHG�WR�

RXU�FDWHULQJ�VWDII�� 

 

:LWK�0DWW¶V�GHFLVLRQ�EHLQJ�DQQRXQFHG��WKLV�OHIW�WKH�&OXE�ZLWK�D�PDMRU�LVVXH�LQ�WU\LQJ�WR�ILQG�D�VXLWDEOH�UHSODFHPHQW�WKDW�

KDG�WKH�SDVVLRQ��GULYH�DQG�H[SHULHQFH�UHTXLUHG�WR�IXOILO�WKH�UROH��7KH�&KDLUPDQ�DQG�,�SRQGHUHG�RYHU�ZKDW�WR�GR�EHIRUH�

DGYLVLQJ�WKH�%RDUG�RI�0DWW¶V�GHFLVLRQ�DQG�,�WKHQ�SXW�WKH�FDOO�RXW�WR�([HFXWLYH�&KHI��6FRWW�3DWWHQ�DW�D�ODUJH�&OXE�LQ 

%ULVEDQH�DQG�PDGH�KLP�DQ�RIIHU�WR�WU\�DQG�JHW�KLP�EDFN��ZKLFK�,�DP�H[WUHPHO\�SOHDVHG�KH�DFFHSWHG��6FRWW�ZDV 

HPSOR\HG�DV�RXU�([HFXWLYH�&KHI�EDFN�LQ������EXW�OHIW�IRU�IDPLO\�UHDVRQV�WR�PRYH�WR�3HUWK��6FRWW�ZDV�DSSRLQWHG�DV�RXU�

([HFXWLYH�&KHI�LQ�-XQH�������ZLWK�KLV�ZLIH�/HDQQH�DOVR�MRLQLQJ�RXU�WHDP�DV�RXU�&DWHULQJ�6XSHUYLVRU��6FRWW�DQG�/HDQQH�

EULQJ�\HDUV�RI�H[SHULHQFH�DQG�LQGXVWU\�NQRZOHGJH�WR�WKH�&OXE�DQG�LW�LV�SOHDVLQJ�WR�VHH�WKH�SRVLWLYH�UHVXOWV�WR�GDWH�� 

 

7KH�FDWHULQJ�UHVXOWV�IRU�WKH�����������\HDU�VKRZ�D�WUDGLQJ�ORVV�RI�������������EXW�LQFOXGH�������������LQ�PHPEHU¶V�

GLVFRXQWV�DQG�SURPRWLRQV�������������LQ�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�IHHV�DQG�DGGLWLRQDO�ZDJH�H[SHQVHV�UHODWLQJ�WR�7RQ\¶V�SD\RXW� 

UHSODFHPHQW�FKHIV�DQG�WKH�HPSOR\PHQW�RI�RXU�SDVWU\�FKHIV��:KLOVW�WKH�%RDUG�DQG�0DQDJHPHQW�DUH�YHU\�FRQFHUQHG�

ZLWK�WKH�RYHUDOO�UHVXOWV�LQ�WKLV�GHSDUWPHQW�ZH�DUH�SOHDVHG�ZLWK�WKH�DSSRLQWPHQWV�RI�6FRWW�DQG�/HDQQH�ZKR�KDYH�EHHQ�

ZRUNLQJ�KDUG�WR�UHGXFH�ZDJH�FRVWV��LPSURYH�V\VWHPV�DQG�LPSOHPHQW�QHZ�PHQXV��:H�KDYH�PDGH�D�ODUJH�QXPEHU�RI�

FKDQJHV�ZLWKLQ�FDWHULQJ�DQG�ZLWK�WKH�([HFXWLYH�&KHI�ZH�ZLOO�EH�PRQLWRULQJ�DOO�DUHDV�ZLWK�D�PDMRU�IRFXV�RQ�ZDJH�FRVWV�

PRYLQJ�IRUZDUG�� 

 

�����ZDV�HOHFWLRQ�\HDU�DQG�PHPEHUV�YRWHG�IRU�VRPH�FKDQJHV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�%RDUG��7KH�HOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV�LV�YHU\�VLPSOH�

DQG�LW�LV�D�GHPRFUDWLF�ULJKW�IRU�DOO�PHPEHUV�WR�FDVW�WKHLU�YRWHV�LQ�WKH�PDQQHU�WKH\�ZLVK�ZLWKLQ�WKH�JXLGHOLQHV�VHW�E\�WKH�

FRQVWLWXWLRQ�DQG�UHJXODWRU\�ODZV��7KHUH�KDV�EHHQ�D�ORW�RI�FRQFHUQV�UDLVHG�IROORZLQJ�WKH�HOHFWLRQ�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�PHPEHUV�

VXSSRUWLQJ�D�³WLFNHW´�RU�³KRZ�WR�YRWH´�FDUG�WKDW�ZDV�UHSRUWHG�EHLQJ�FLUFXODWHG�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�PHPEHUVKLS��7R�FODULI\��

WKHUH�LV�QRWKLQJ�LQ�WKH�UXOHV�WR�VD\�D�PHPEHU�RU�JURXS�RI�PHPEHUV�FDQ�RU�FDQQRW�SURGXFH���SURPRWH�D�³KRZ�WR�YRWH´�

FDUG��SURYLGLQJ�LW�LV�QRW�GRQH�ZLWKLQ�WKH�&OXE��7KH�FRQFHUQV�UDLVHG��ERWK�IRU�DQG�DJDLQVW�WKLV�LVVXH�RI�FLUFXODWLQJ�D�³KRZ�

WR�YRWH´�FDUG��KDV�FUHDWHG�SOHQW\�RI�SROLWLFDO�GLVFXVVLRQV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�&OXE�DQG�IRU�VRPH�WLPH�GLG�FUHDWH�FRQFHUQV� 

KRZHYHU��DV�D�&OXE��ZH�FDQQRW�EH�KHOG�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�KRZ�PHPEHUV�YRWH��QRU�WKH�UHVXOWV��7KH�&OXE�PXVW�ZRUN�ZLWK�

DQG�UHVSHFW�DOO�WKRVH�DSSRLQWHG�E\�WKH�HOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV�DQG�FRQWLQXH�WR�JXLGH�WKH�HOHFWHG�PHPEHUV�LQ�WKHLU�UROHV�DV�

EHVW�DV�SRVVLEOH��7KH�FXUUHQW�%RDUG��ZKHWKHU�LQ�IDYRXU�RU�QRW��ZHUH�DSSRLQWHG�E\�WKH�HOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV�DQG�GR�KROG 

RIILFH�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�PHPEHUV�DQG�VKRXOG�EH�UHVSHFWHG�LQ�WKHLU�UROHV�DV�UHSUHVHQWDWLYHV�RI�WKH�PHPEHUV��,W�LV 

GLVDSSRLQWLQJ�WKDW��VLQFH�WKH�HOHFWLRQV��WKH�%RDUG�KDYH�EHHQ�HQJDJHG�LQ�VRPH�SROLWLFDO�QRQVHQVH�DQG�EDG�EHKDYLRXU�RI�

VRPH�PHPEHUV�ZKLFK�KDV�GLVWUDFWHG�WKHP�IURP�SHUIRUPLQJ�WKHLU�UROHV�LQ�WKH�SURIHVVLRQDO�PDQQHU�UHTXLUHG�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�

DOO�PHPEHUV��:KLOVW�WKLV�KDV�FUHDWHG�FRQFHUQV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU��,�WKDQN�WKH�%RDUG�IRU�PDLQWDLQLQJ�SURIHVVLRQDOLVP�DQG�

QRW�ORVLQJ�IRFXV�RQ�WKH�UXQQLQJ�RI�WKH�&OXE��7KLV�KDV�QRW�DOZD\V�EHHQ�SRVVLEOH�ZLWK�D�QXPEHU�RI�GHFLVLRQV�EHLQJ 

FKDOOHQJHG��RYHUWXUQHG�RU�UHYLHZHG�DIWHU�UHFHLYLQJ�OHJDO�DGYLFH��/HJDO�FRVWV�IRU�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU�WRWDO����������ZKLFK�

UHSUHVHQW�DGYLFH�UHODWLQJ�WR�GLVFLSOLQDU\�PDWWHUV� 

 

7KH�%RDUG¶V�UROH�LV�WR�VHW�SROLF\��PDLQWDLQ�FRUSRUDWH�JRYHUQDQFH��PDLQWDLQ�ILQDQFLDO�FRQWUROV�DQG�UHSUHVHQW�DOO�PHPEHUV�

LQ�D�SURIHVVLRQDO�PDQQHU�DW�DOO�WLPHV�DQG�WKLV�LQFOXGHV�PDNLQJ�GHFLVLRQV�LQ�WKH�EHVW�LQWHUHVW�RI�WKH�EXVLQHVV��ZKLFK�PD\�

QRW�DOZD\V�EH�VHHQ�LQ�WKH�EHVW�LQWHUHVW�RI�VRPH�PHPEHUV��7KH�FXUUHQW�%RDUG��OLNH�DOO�%RDUGV�EHIRUH��DUH�DOO�WU\LQJ�KDUG�

WR�IXOILO�WKHLU�UROHV�LQ�D�SURIHVVLRQDO�PDQQHU�DQG�UHSUHVHQW�WKH�RYHUDOO�PHPEHUVKLS�ZKLOVW�VWLOO�OHDUQLQJ�WKHLU�UROHV�� 

 



7UDLQLQJ�LV�DOVR�D�VWURQJ�SDUW�RI�EHLQJ�D�'LUHFWRU�DQG�DOO�'LUHFWRUV�KDYH�EHHQ�FRPPLWWHG�WR�WKLV�SURFHVV�DQG�PHHWLQJ�

WKH�UHTXLUHG�WUDLQLQJ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�� 

 

2XU�&OXE�LV�YHU\�IRUWXQDWH�WR�KDYH�JUHDW�VSRQVRUV�ZKR�SURYLGH�ILQDQFLDO�VXSSRUW�IRU�WRXUQDPHQWV�DQG�HYHQWV�IRU�RXU�

ERZOHUV�DQG�ZH�WKDQN�WKHP�DOO�IRU�WKHLU�RQJRLQJ�VXSSRUW�RI�RXU�&OXE��,�ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�JLYH�VSHFLDO�PHQWLRQ�DQG�WKDQNV�WR�

&OXEV16:��$ULVWRFUDW�*DPLQJ��$VDKL�6FKZHSSHV��*6:�&OHDQLQJ�DQG�7URSLFDO�)UXLW�:RUOG�IRU�VXSSRUWLQJ�RXU�PDMRU�

ERZOLQJ�HYHQWV�LQ�����������LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�:RPHQ¶V�6WDWH�3HQQDQW�ILQDOV�� 

 

:H�DUH�YHU\�SOHDVHG�ZLWK�RXU�JDPLQJ�LQVWDOODWLRQ�DQG�UHVXOWV��&RPSDUHG�WR�6WDWH�DYHUDJHV��RXU�&OXE�LV�SHUIRUPLQJ 

H[WUHPHO\�ZHOO�DQG�WKLV�LV�D�GLUHFW�UHVXOW�RI�RXU�FXUUHQW�XS-WR-GDWH�IOHHW�RI�PDFKLQHV��7KH�&OXE�LV�FRPPLWWHG�WR�UHJXODUO\�

XSJUDGLQJ�RXU�PDFKLQHV�DQG�WKH�&OXE�ZLOO�EH�LQ�D�SRVLWLRQ�WR�UROO�RYHU�RXU�PDFKLQHV�HYHU\���\HDUV��,W�KDV�WDNHQ����

\HDUV�WR�JHW�WR�WKLV�SRVLWLRQ��$�PDFKLQH�KDV�D�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�OLIH�RI�EHWZHHQ��������\HDUV�DQG�ZH�QRZ�SODQ�DQG�EXGJHW�WR�

UHSODFH���XSJUDGH����PDFKLQHV�SHU�\HDU�WR�WKH�ODWHVW�JDPHV�RQ�WKH�PDUNHW��ZKLFK�NHHSV�SOD\HUV�HQJDJHG�� 

 

,Q������WKH�&OXE�VWDUWHG�ZRUNLQJ�RQ�RXU�&OXE¶V�0DVWHU�3ODQ�ZKLFK�LQFOXGHV�WKH�ELVWUR�H[WHQVLRQV�DQG�IXOO�XSJUDGH��,Q�

0DUFK�������7ZHHG�6KLUH�&RXQFLO�ILQDOO\�DSSURYHG�WKH�'HYHORSPHQW�$SSOLFDWLRQ�DIWHU�D�OHQJWK\�SURFHVV��6LQFH 

UHFHLYLQJ�WKH�DSSURYDO��WKH�%RDUG�KDYH�SDUNHG�WKH�SURMHFW�WR�FRQFHQWUDWH�RQ�RWKHU�VKRUW�WHUP�FRQFHUQV�DQG�ZLOO�EH 

KROGLQJ�GLVFXVVLRQV�LQ�ODWH������WR�ORRN�DW�KRZ�WKLV�SURMHFW�FDQ�EH�VWDJHG�DQG�WLPH�IUDPHV�PRYLQJ�IRUZDUG��7KH�FXUUHQW�

DSSURYDOV�UHTXLUH�ZRUN�WR�FRPPHQFH�ZLWKLQ�ILYH�\HDUV�IURP�WKH�GDWH�RI�DSSURYDO�ZKLFK�LV�EHIRUH�0DUFK�������7KHUH�LV�

D�ORW�RI�ZRUN�WR�EH�GRQH�EHIRUH�DQ\�ZRUNV�FRPPHQFH�DQG�IXUWKHU�PHPEHU¶V�LQIRUPDWLRQ�PHHWLQJV�ZLOO�EH�KHOG�WR�NHHS�

HYHU\RQH�ZHOO�LQIRUPHG�� 

 

2XU�3RS-8S�EDU�LV�SURYLQJ�WR�EH�YHU\�SRSXODU�ZLWK�PDQ\�IXQFWLRQV�DOUHDG\�EHLQJ�ERRNHG�IRU�VWDII�SDUWLHV�WKLV�\HDU��$IWHU�

WKH������-DQXDU\�KROLGD\�SHULRG�WKH�&OXE�ZDV�DGYLVHG�E\�7ZHHG�6KLUH�&RXQFLO�WKDW�ZH�KDG�WR�DSSO\�IRU�D 

'HYHORSPHQW�$SSOLFDWLRQ�IROORZLQJ�D�QRLVH�FRPSODLQW�IURP�D�QHLJKERXU��7KLV�SURFHVV�ZDV�H[KDXVWLQJ�WR�VD\�WKH�OHDVW�

DQG�WRRN�RYHU���PRQWKV�WR�JHW�ILQDO�DSSURYDO��,Q�HDUO\�'HFHPEHU������,�FRQWDFWHG�&RXQFLO�WR�VHH�KRZ�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�

ZDV�JRLQJ�DV�ZH�KDG�IXQFWLRQV�ERRNHG�IURP�)ULGD\��WK�'HFHPEHU��$IWHU�PDQ\�SKRQH�FDOOV�DQG�PHHWLQJV��ZH�UHFHLYHG�

DSSURYDO�RQ�WKH�7KXUVGD\�EHIRUH�RXU�ILUVW�'HFHPEHU�IXQFWLRQ�ZKLFK�ZDV�YHU\�WLJKW��7KH�DSSURYDO�ZDV�UHVWULFWLYH�DQG�ZH�

DJDLQ�KDG�WR�DSSO\�WR�PRGLI\�WKH�DSSURYDO�LQ�)HEUXDU\�WR�DOORZ�XV�WR�XVH�WKH�DUHD�IURP�HDUO\�PRUQLQJ�WR�����SP��ZLWK�

UHVWULFWLRQV��7KLV�ZDV�DSSURYHG�LQ�0DUFK�IROORZLQJ�KDYLQJ�WR�SURYLGH�IXUWKHU�UHSRUWV�WR�VDWLVI\�&RXQFLO�DQG�RXU 

QHLJKERXUV��7KH�&OXE�QRZ�KDV�DSSURYDO�WR�RSHUDWH�WKH�3RS-8S�EDU���GD\V�SHU�ZHHN�IURP�HDUO\�PRUQLQJ�WLOO�����SP��

ZLWK�QRLVH�UHVWULFWLRQV�DV�SDUW�RI�WKH�DSSURYDOV� 

 

7KH�&OXE�KDV�DSSOLHG�WR�WKH�2IILFH�RI�/LTXRU�*DPLQJ�DQG�5DFLQJ�WR�PRGLI\�WKH�&OXE¶V�OLFHQVHG�DUHDV�WR�DOORZ�NLGV�WR�VLW�

LQ�WKH�PDLQ�ORXQJH�ZLWK�D�UHVSRQVLEOH�DGXOW��,I�DSSURYHG��WKH�&OXE�ZLOO�KDYH�VWULFW�JXLGHOLQHV�LQ�SODFH�VR�WKDW�WKH�SDUHQWV�

RU�UHVSRQVLEOH�DGXOWV�IXOO\�XQGHUVWDQG�WKHLU�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�WR�HQVXUH�WKH�PLQRUV�DUH�ZHOO�VXSHUYLVHG�DQG�EHKDYH�ZKLOVW�

LQ�WKH�FRPSDQ\�RI�RXU�PHPEHUV�DQG�DGXOWV��7KHUH�ZLOO�DOVR�EH�WLPH�UHVWULFWLRQV�SXW�LQ�SODFH�WR�SURWHFW�WKH�LQWHJULW\�RI�

WKH�&OXE�DQG�RXU�PHPEHUV��:H�DUH�KRSLQJ�WR�KDYH�WKH�DSSURYDOV�LQ�ODWH�1RYHPEHU�� 

 

7KH�16:�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�,QGXVWU\�DUH�FXUUHQWO\�UHYLHZLQJ�DOO�&URZQ�/DQG�OHDVHV�DQG�WKH�&OXE�KDV�DSSOLHG�DQ�

³H[SUHVVLRQ�RI�LQWHUHVW´�ZLWK�WKH�GHSDUWPHQW�RQ�WKH�SRVVLELOLW\�RI�SXUFKDVLQJ�WKH�&OXE�ODQG�IURP�WKH�&URZQ��7KLV 

DSSOLFDWLRQ�KDV�QRZ�EHHQ�ZLWK�WKH�GHSDUWPHQW�IRU�RYHU�WZHOYH�PRQWKV�DQG�ZH�KDYH�EHHQ�DGYLVHG�LQ�-XO\������WKDW�RXU�

DSSOLFDWLRQ�LV�VWLOO�WR�EH�SURFHVVHG��7KH\�KDYH�UHFHLYHG�D�ODUJH�DPRXQW�RI�DSSOLFDWLRQV�ZKLFK�WKH\�GLG�QRW�H[SHFW�DQG�LW�

LV�WDNLQJ�PXFK�ORQJHU�WKDQ�DQWLFLSDWHG�WR�SURFHVV�HDFK�DSSOLFDWLRQ� 

 

:KDW�GRHV�WKLV�PHDQ�IRU�RXU�&OXE"�:H�FXUUHQWO\�SD\�/DQG�OHDVH�UHQW�RI����������SHU�DQQXP�IRU�WKH�ODQG�WKH�&OXE�DQG�

JUHHQV�DUH�RQ��WKLV�DPRXQW�ZDV�UHGXFHG�D�IHZ�\HDUV�DJR�ZKHQ�ZH�QHJRWLDWHG�WKH�FDU�SDUN�OLFHQVH�� 

� 



:H�QRZ�DOVR�SD\������������IRU�D�OLFHQFH�RYHU�WKH�FDUSDUN��+RZHYHU��WKH�FDUSDUN�OLFHQVH�GRHV�QRW�JLYH�WKH�&OXE�DQ\�

ULJKWV�RU�FRQWURO�RI�WKH�XVH�RI�WKH�FDUSDUN�EXW�LV�D�UHTXLUHPHQW�IRU�WKH�&OXE¶V�/LTXRU�/LFHQVH�WR�KDYH�DQG�PDLQWDLQ�����

FDU�VSDFHV�� 

 

7KH�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�,QGXVWU\�ZLOO�UHYLHZ�RXU�FXUUHQW�DJUHHPHQWV�DQG�ORRN�DW�WKH�YDOXH�RI�WKH�ODQG�EHIRUH�PDNLQJ�DQ\�

GHFLVLRQ�WR�RIIHU�WKH�&OXE�WKH�RSSRUWXQLW\�WR�SXUFKDVH��,I�WKH\�SURFHHG�WKH\�ZLOO�KDYH�WKH�ODQG�YDOXHG�DQG�WKHQ�PDNH�DQ�

RIIHU�WR�WKH�&OXE�EDVHG�RQ�WKHLU�YDOXDWLRQ��7KH�RIIHU��DV�LW�VWDQGV��ZRXOG�DOORZ�WKH�&OXE�WR�SXUFKDVH�WKH�ODQG�DW�DQ�

DJUHHG�YDOXH�DQG�EH�SDLG�LQ�LQVWDOPHQWV�RYHU����\HDUV��7KLV�LV�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�OHVV�WKDQ�RXU�FXUUHQW�ODQG�OHDVH 

3D\PHQWV��ZLWK�DQ�DVVHW�RQ�RXU�ERRNV�DW�WKH�HQG��2QFH�DJDLQ��ZH�ZLOO�LQIRUP�WKH�PHPEHUV�RQ�WKH�SURJUHVV�RI�WKH 

DSSOLFDWLRQ�LQ�RXU�IXWXUH�QHZVOHWWHUV�� 

 

5HSDLUV�DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�DUH�D�FRQWLQXDO�RQJRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�ZKHQ�ZH�KDYH�D�&OXE�LQ�VXFK�D�JUHDW�ORFDWLRQ�DQG�VR�FORVH�

WR�WKH�EHDFK��7KH�%RDUG�KDYH�EHHQ�FRPPLWWHG�WR�HQVXULQJ�RXU�EXLOGLQJ�DQG�IXUQLVKLQJV�DUH�ZHOO�PDLQWDLQHG�ZKLOVW�ZH�

WU\�DQG�VWD\�RQ�WRS�RI�DOO�RXU�PDLQWHQDQFH�LVVXHV��&RUURVLRQ�LV�RXU�ELJJHVW�LVVXH�ZLWK�RXU�79¶V�DQG�VHFXULW\�FDPHUDV�

RQO\�KDYLQJ�D�VKHOI�OLIH�RI�DERXW���\HDUV�EHIRUH�KDYLQJ�WR�EH�UHSODFHG��7KLV�LV�QRW�FKHDS�DQG�LV�YHU\�IUXVWUDWLQJ�ZKHQ�ZH�

DUH�WU\LQJ�WR�GR�LPSURYHPHQWV�EXW�DUH�FRQWLQXRXVO\�EHLQJ�KLW�ZLWK�UHSODFHPHQW�FRVWV�DQG�EUHDNGRZQV�GXH�WR�FRUURVLRQ�

LVVXHV�� 

 

3URWHFWLQJ�RXU�DVVHWV�LV�D�KLJK�SULRULW\�DQG�WKH�GHFLVLRQ�WR�SDLQW�WKH�H[WHULRU�RI�WKH�&OXE�IRUPV�SDUW�RI�WKLV�SULRULW\��:KLOVW�

PRVW�PHPEHUV�DSSUHFLDWH�WKH�ZRUN�EHLQJ�GRQH�DQG�ORYH�WKH�FRORXUV��VRPH�GRQ¶W�DJUHH�DQG�GLVOLNH�WKH�FRORXUV��7KH�

ZRUN�FDUULHG�RXW�E\�³'R�LW�HDV\´�SDLQWLQJ�HQVXUHV�ORQJHU�OLIH�LQ�RXU�DVVHWV��7KH�UXVW�SUHYHQWLRQ�ZRUNV�DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�

SURJUDP�ZLOO�SURYLGH�WKH�&OXE�ZLWK�VRPH�FRQILGHQFH�DQG�DVVXUDQFH�WKDW�WKH�DVVHWV�ZLOO�ODVW�ORQJHU�DQG�VDYH�PRQH\�

ORQJHU�WHUP� 

 

7KH�%RDUG�KDYH�D�QXPEHU�RI�PDLQWHQDQFH�LWHPV�RQ�WKH�$FWLRQ�OLVW�WR�EH�DGGUHVVHG�RYHU�WKH�FRPLQJ�\HDU�ZKLFK 

LQFOXGHV�XSJUDGLQJ���UHSODFLQJ�RXU�HVVHQWLDO�ILUH�VHUYLFHV��XSJUDGLQJ�RI�WKH�&OXE¶V�DLU-FRQGLWLRQLQJ�ZDWHU�WRZHU�IDQ�XQLW��

ODGGHU�DQG�KDQG�UDLOV��ZKLFK�DUH�DOO�ZRUNV�WKDW�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�EH�SHUIRUPHG�DV�SDUW�RI�RXU�FRPSOLDQFH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�� 

$LU-FRQGLWLRQLQJ�LV�D�PDMRU�H[SHQVH�WR�WKH�EXVLQHVV�DQG�ZH�QRZ�RQO\�KDYH���XQLWV�WR�EH�UHSODFHG�RYHU�WKH�QH[W���\HDUV��

7KHVH�XQLWV�DUH�DOO�RYHU����\HDUV�ROG�DQG�ZLOO�EH�UHSODFHG�RYHU�WLPH�� 

 

7KH�&OXE�KDV���HOHFWULFDO�VZLWFK�ERDUGV�DQG�DV�SDUW�RI�RXU�VWUDWHJLF�SODQ�ZH�KDYH�EHHQ�ZRUNLQJ�RQ�WRWDO�XSJUDGHV�RI�

HDFK�ERDUG�RYHU�WKH�SDVW����PRQWKV��&XUUHQWO\�ZH�KDYH�RQO\���WR�EH�FRPSOHWHG�ZKLFK�EULQJV�WKHP�DOO�XS�WR�WKH�FXUUHQW�

$XVWUDOLDQ�VWDQGDUGV�ZLWK�D�WRWDO�LQYHVWPHQW�RI����N�� 

 

$V�SDUW�RI�RXU�RQJRLQJ�PDLQWHQDQFH��UHSDLUV�WR�RXU�VHDWLQJ�DURXQG�WKH�ERZOLQJ�JUHHQV�KDV�DOZD\V�EHHQ�DQ�RQJRLQJ�

FRPPLWPHQW�DQG�FRVWV�RQ�DYHUDJH�DERXW���N�SHU�\HDU�LQ�SDLQW�DQG�UHSODFHPHQW�FRVWV��7KLV�\HDU��DIWHU�VRPH 

GLVFXVVLRQ��LW�ZDV�DJUHHG�WR�XSJUDGH�DOO�WKH�VHDWLQJ�ZLWK�DOXPLQLXP�VHDWLQJ�DQG�WR�LQVWDOO�VXQ�SURWHFWLRQ�VKDGHV�DORQJ�

WKH�ZHVWHUQ�ZDOO��7KH�&OXE�KDG�DSSOLHG�IRU�D�QXPEHU�RI�JRYHUQPHQW�IXQGLQJ�JUDQWV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�EXW�XQIRUWXQDWHO\�

ZHUH�QRW�VXFFHVVIXO�GXH�WR�RXU�JDPLQJ�LQFRPH�� 

 

$V�D�UHVXOW��RXU�0HQ¶V�DQG�:RPHQ¶V�FRPPLWWHHV�SDLG�IRU�WKHVH�ZRUNV�IURP�WKHLU�LQYHVWPHQW�DFFRXQWV�ZKLFK�ZDV�VHW�XS�

IURP�PRQLHV�UDLVHG�LQ�UDIIOHV�DQG�ERZOV�HYHQWV�WR�EH�XVHG�WR�VXSSRUW�RXU�ERZOHUV�LQ�WKH�IXWXUH��2Q�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�%RDUG�

DQG�PHPEHUV�ZH�WKDQN�ERWK�VHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHHV�IRU�WKHLU�RQJRLQJ�FRPPLWPHQW�WR�RXU�ERZOLQJ�PHPEHUV�DQG�XWLOLVLQJ�

WKH�PHPEHU¶V�IXQGV�IRU�WKH�EHQHILW�RI�DOO�ERZOLQJ�PHPEHUV�� 

 

&OXEV�DUH�ZHOO�NQRZQ�IRU�RIIHULQJ�JUHDW�HQWHUWDLQPHQW�DQG�SURPRWLRQV�WR�PHPEHUV�DQG�ZH�DUH�DOZD\V�ORRNLQJ�DW�QHZ�

RSSRUWXQLWLHV�DQG�LGHDV�WR�HQWHUWDLQ�RXU�PHPEHUV��2YHU�WKH�SDVW�\HDU�ZH�KDYH�LQWURGXFHG�D�QXPEHU�RI�QHZ�IDPLO\�

IULHQGO\�HYHQWV�DQG�WKH�6XQGD\�%HDWV�DQG�%UHZV�OLYH�HQWHUWDLQPHQW�ZKLFK�KDYH�DOO�EHHQ�YHU\�ZHOO�VXSSRUWHG�E\�RXU� 



PHPEHUV��:H�KDYH�DOVR�PDGH�VXEVWDQWLDO�LQYHVWPHQWV�LQ�RXU�&OXE�SURPRWLRQV�DQG�ZH�DUH�YHU\�H[FLWHG�ZLWK�RXU 

FXUUHQW�³*UHDW�$XVWUDOLDQ�'RRUVWHS´�SURPRWLRQ�ZKLFK�ZLOO�VHH���YHU\�OXFN\�PHPEHUV�ZLQQLQJ�WKH�RSSRUWXQLW\�WR�EH�SDUW�

RI���JUHDW�³WDJ�DORQJ´�WRXUV�ZLWK�6SLGD�DQG�RU�6KHUHH�(YHULWW�ZLWK�RQH�WUDYHOOLQJ�IURP�0HOERXUQH�WR�'DUZLQ�DQG�WKH�1HZ�

=HDODQG�SDFNDJH�WUDYHOOLQJ�IURP�$XFNODQG�WR�4XHHQVWRZQ��%RWK�SDFNDJHV�DUH�YDOXHG�DW������������HDFK�DQG 

7	&¶V�FDQ�EH�YLHZHG�RQ�RXU�ZHEVLWH�� 

 

2XU�³.LQJ\�5HZDUGV´�SURJUDP�LV�VWLOO�SHUIRUPLQJ�YHU\�VWURQJ�DQG�ZH�KDYH�SURYLGHG�VRPH�JUHDW�UHZDUGV�IRU�RXU 

'LDPRQG�DQG�*ROG�PHPEHUV�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�WKHLU�FRQWLQXDO�VXSSRUW�E\�XVLQJ�WKHLU�PHPEHUVKLS�FDUGV�DQG�UHFHLYLQJ�

SRLQWV�RQ�HYHU\�SXUFKDVH�WKURXJKRXW�RXU�&OXE�� 

 

2XU�:HGGLQJ¶V�VHFWRU�FRQWLQXHV�WR�JURZ�DQG�LQ������WKH�&OXE�ZRQ�WKH�*ROG�&RDVW�	�+LQWHUODQG¶V�%ULGHV�&KRLFH�$ZDUG�

IRU�%HVW�:HGGLQJ�9HQXH�-�/LFHQFHG�&OXE��$JDLQ��LQ�������WKH�&OXE�KDV�IRXQG�LWVHOI�QRPLQDWHG�DV�D�ILQDOLVW�ZLWK�WKH�

DZDUGV�QLJKW�WDNLQJ�SODFH�LQ�ODWH�2FWREHU��:H�ZLOO�NHHS�\RX�LQIRUPHG� 

 

,Q������ZH�DSSOLHG�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�RXU�:RPHQ¶V�%RZOV�&OXE�WR�KRVW�WKH������DQG������:RPHQ¶V�16:�6WDWH�3HQQDQW 

ILQDOV�DQG�ZH�ZHUH�YHU\�H[FLWHG�WR�EH�DGYLVHG�RXU�DSSOLFDWLRQ�ZDV�VXFFHVVIXO�ODVW�2FWREHU��:RUN�EHJDQ�WR�VWDUW 

SUHSDULQJ�DQG�SODQQLQJ�IRU�WKLV�PDVVLYH�HYHQW�ZKLFK�LQYROYHG�RYHU�����ZRPHQ�ERZOHUV�DQG�DSSUR[LPDWHO\����� 

VXSSRUWHUV�IURP�DOO�RYHU�16:��7KH���7ZHHG�&RDVW�&OXEV�DOO�ZRUNHG�WRJHWKHU�WR�HQVXUH�DOO�ERZOHUV�DQG�VXSSRUWHUV 

HQMR\HG�RXU�&OXEV�DQG�RXU�EHDXWLIXO�7ZHHG�&RDVW��2XU�&OXE��DV�WKH�KRVW�YHQXH��KRVWHG�WKH�ILQDOV�DQG�LW�ZDV�DQ 

DPD]LQJ�HYHQW�WKDW�VKRZFDVHG�RXU�JUHDW�&OXE��,�ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�WKDQN�3UHVLGHQW�5RE\Q�DQG�6HFUHWDU\�0DXUHHQ�DQG�WKH�

:RPHQ¶V�PDQDJHPHQW�FRPPLWWHH�IRU�DOO�WKHLU�KDUG�ZRUN�DQG�VXSSRUW�GXULQJ�WKLV�HYHQW��ZKLFK�ZDV�YHU\�VXFFHVVIXO��

7KH�ILQDOV�ZRXOG�QRW�KDYH�EHHQ�VR�VXFFHVVIXO�ZLWKRXW�WKH�VXSSRUW�RI�DOO�RXU�/LDLVRQ�2IILFHUV�DQG�YROXQWHHUV�ZKR�DOO�

ZRUNHG�WRJHWKHU�DV�D�WHDP�WR�HQVXUH�LWV�VXFFHVV�DQG�ZH�WKDQN�WKHP�DOO�IRU�WKHLU�VXSSRUW�DQG�HIIRUWV��:H�DUH�DOUHDG\�

SODQQLQJ�QH[W�\HDU¶V�ILQDOV�DQG�ZH�KRSH�WKDW�LW�ZLOO�EH�HYHQ�ELJJHU�DQG�EHWWHU�WKDQ�������,�ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�JLYH�VSHFLDO�

WKDQNV�WR�$OL�$OGHU�ZKR�ZDV�SLYRWDO�WR�WKLV�\HDU¶V�VXFFHVV�E\�SURYLGLQJ�GLUHFW�FRQWDFW�ZLWK�HDFK�YLVLWLQJ�WHDP�PDQDJHUV�

WR�HQVXUH�WKHLU�H[SHULHQFH�RQ�WKH�7ZHHG�&RDVW�ZDV�PHPRUDEOH�ZKLOVW�HQMR\LQJ�WKH�ERZOLQJ�FRPSHWLWLRQ�� 

 

(QWHUWDLQPHQW�LV�VWLOO�D�PDMRU�SDUW�RI�RXU�EXVLQHVV�DQG�ZH�KDYH�EHHQ�WU\LQJ�WR�PL[�LW�XS�ZLWK�VRPH�JUHDW�HQWHUWDLQHUV��

ZKLFK�KDV�EHHQ�ZHOO�VXSSRUWHG��)URP�$XVWUDOLD�'D\�����-DQXDU\�������ZH�ZLOO�EH�KRVWLQJ�RXU������³6HDUFK�IRU�D�6WDU´�

NDUDRNH�FRPSHWLWLRQ�ZLWK�XS�WR�����������LQ�SUL]H�PRQH\�XS�IRU�JUDEV�WR�RXU�EHVW�VLQJHU��7KLV�FRPSHWLWLRQ�ZLOO�UXQ�RYHU�

��6XQGD\�DIWHUQRRQV�DQG�LI�\RX�WKLQN�\RX�FDQ�VLQJ��PDNH�VXUH�\RX�MRLQ�XV�WR�VKDUH�\RXU�DELOLWLHV�� 

 

2XU�&RQVWLWXWLRQ�DQG�%\-/DZV�JRYHUQ�WKH�GD\�WR�GD\�RSHUDWLRQV�RI�RXU�&OXE�DQG�WKH�%RDUG�KDV�EHHQ�ZRUNLQJ�ZLWK�RXU�

:RPHQ¶V�DQG�0HQ¶V�FRPPLWWHHV�RYHU�WKH�SDVW�\HDU�WR�ORRN�DW�ZKDW�FKDQJHV�QHHG�WR�EH�PDGH�LQ�RXU�%\-/DZV�DQG 

&RQVWLWXWLRQ�WR�EULQJ�WKHP�XS�WR�GDWH��3OHDVLQJO\��RXU�&RQVWLWXWLRQ�RQO\�UHTXLUHV�D�IHZ�PLQRU�FKDQJHV�ZKLFK�LV�EDVLFDOO\�

WR�DPHQG�VRPH�PLQRU�ZRUGLQJ�FRQFHUQV��2XU�%\-/DZV�KDYH�EHHQ�WRWDOO\�UHYLHZHG�DQG�DUH�FXUUHQWO\�EHLQJ�ZRUNHG�

WKURXJK�ZLWK�VRPH�FKDQJHV�WR�EH�SUHVHQWHG�WR�WKH�%RDUG�IRU�DSSURYDO�LQ�ODWH�������2QFH�WKHVH�DPHQGPHQWV�KDYH�

EHHQ�DSSURYHG�IXOO�XSGDWHG�FRSLHV�ZLOO�EH�SRVWHG�DQG�DYDLODEOH�IRU�DOO�PHPEHUV�IURP�5HFHSWLRQ� 

 

,Q�������WKH�6WDWH�*RYHUQPHQW�LQWURGXFHG�WKH�ERWWOH�UHGHPSWLRQ�SURJUDP�WR�WU\�DQG�UHGXFH�OLWWHU�DQG�ZDVWH�LVVXHV�LQ�

ODQGILOO��:KLOVW�WKLV�SURJUDP�LV�JRRG��LW�DOVR�FUHDWHG�VRPH�FRPPHUFLDO�FRQFHUQV�IRU�&OXEV��2XU�&OXE�H[SHULHQFHG�DQ�

LQFUHDVH�RI�SHRSOH�JRLQJ�WKURXJK�RXU�ELQV�ZKLFK�FUHDWHG�VRPH�VDIHW\�LVVXHV�DQG�JHQHUDO�FRQFHUQV��$IWHU�EHLQJ�LQ�

SODFH�IRU�D�IHZ�PRQWKV�WKH�WKHQ�%RDUG�DSSURYHG�D�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQ�IURP�RXU�FXUUHQW�&KDLUPDQ�WR�FROOHFW�DQG�UHWXUQ�

RXU�ERWWOHV�ZLWK�DOO�IXQGV�EHLQJ�UHWDLQHG�WR�VXSSRUW�WKH�RQJRLQJ�RSHUDWLRQ�RI�RXU�FRXUWHV\�EXV�DQG�UHGXFH�LWV 

RSHUDWLRQDO�FRVWV��,Q�����������WKH�³UHWXUQ�	�HDUQ´�VFKHPH�UDLVHG����������IURP�ERWWOHV�IURP�RXU�&OXE�DQG�ZH�WKDQN�

5D\�%UHHQ�IRU�KLV�HIIRUWV�ZLWK�WKLV�VFKHPH��&OXE�VWDII�VRUW�DOO�ERWWOHV�GDLO\�DQG�WZLFH�D�ZHHN�PHHW�WKH�&KDLUPDQ�DW�WKH�

³UHWXUQ�	�HDUQ´�UHIXJH�ZKHUH�KH�UXQV�WKHP�WKURXJK�WKH�V\VWHP�WR�FROOHFW�WKH�IXQGV��7KLV�QRW�RQO\�WDNHV�WLPH�EXW� 

FRPPLWPHQW�DQG�DJDLQ�ZH�WKDQN�5D\�IRU�KLV�GHGLFDWLRQ�ZLWK�WKLV�VFKHPH�� 



3ROLWLFV��FRPSODLQWV�DQG�JHQHUDO�ZKLQJLQJ�DUH�DOO�SDUW�RI�ZKDW�'LUHFWRUV�DQG�FRPPLWWHHV�RI�&OXEV�KDYH�WR�GHDO�ZLWK�RQ�D�

GDLO\�EDVLV��,W�VKRXOG�EH�UHPHPEHUHG�WKDW�WKHVH�GHGLFDWHG�SHRSOH�SXW�XS�WKHLU�KDQGV�WR�VXSSRUW�DQG�UHSUHVHQW�WKH�

PHPEHUV�LQ�D�YDULHW\�RI�UROHV�DQG�RXU�'LUHFWRUV�DQG�VHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHHV�DOO�ZRUN�KDUG�WR�UHSUHVHQW�RXU�PHPEHUV�� 

 

,�ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�WKDQN�WKH�&KDLUPDQ�DQG�'LUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�%RDUG�IRU�WKHLU�RQJRLQJ�FRPPLWPHQW�WR�RXU�PHPEHUV�DQG�VWDII�

GXULQJ�WKH�SDVW�\HDU�DQG�ORRN�IRUZDUG�WR�ZRUNLQJ�ZLWK�WKHP�LQ�������,�ZRXOG�DOVR�OLNH�WR�SHUVRQDOO\�WKDQN�RXU�0HQ¶V�DQG�

:RPHQ¶V�3UHVLGHQWV�DQG�PDQDJHPHQW�FRPPLWWHHV�IRU�WKHLU�RQJRLQJ�GHGLFDWLRQ�GXULQJ�D�YHU\�FKDOOHQJLQJ�\HDU�RQ 

EHKDOI�RI�RXU�PHPEHUV�������LV�HOHFWLRQ�\HDU�IRU�RXU�ERZOV�VHFWLRQV�DQG�DJDLQ�,�WKDQN�DOO�WKRVH�FXUUHQWO\�KROGLQJ�RIILFH�

DQG�ORRN�IRUZDUG�WR�ZRUNLQJ�ZLWK�WKH�VHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHHV�LQ������ 

 

0HPEHUV�PDNH�&OXEV�VXFFHVVIXO�DQG�ZH�DUH�YHU\�IRUWXQDWH�RI�KDYLQJ�JUHDW�PHPEHUV�DQG�,�WKDQN�\RX�DOO�IRU�\RXU 

RQJRLQJ�VXSSRUW�RI�\RXU�&OXE��7KH�%RDUG�DQG�0DQDJHPHQW�DUH�FRPPLWWHG�WR�HQVXUH�ZH�SURYLGH�D�FOHDQ�DQG�VDIH 

HQYLURQPHQW�IRU�DOO�PHPEHUV�WR�HQMR\�DQG�ZH�KDYH�D�VWULFW�³QR�QRQVHQVH´�SROLF\�LQ�SODFH�WR�SURWHFW�DOO�PHPEHUV��7KH�

&OXE�LV�DOVR�JRYHUQHG�E\�OLFHQVLQJ�ODZV�DQG�WKH�³5HVSRQVLEOH�VHUYLFH�RI�DOFRKRO´�ODZV�DUH�YHU\�FRQWUROOHG��7KH�&OXE�

PXVW�DOZD\V�HQVXUH�WKH�³UHVSRQVLEOH�VHUYLFH�RI�DOFRKRO´�DQG�ZH�DVN�DOO�PHPEHUV�WR�EH�UHVSHFWIXO�WR�RXU�VWDII�DQG 

VHFXULW\�LI�DSSURDFKHG�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�\RXU�EHKDYLRXU�ZLWKLQ�WKH�&OXE��:KLOVW�ZH�ZDQW�RXU�PHPEHUV�DQG�JXHVWV�WR�HQMR\�

WKHPVHOYHV�ZKLOVW�LQ�RXU�&OXE��RXU�6WDII�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�WR�HQVXUH�PHPEHUV�DQG�JXHVWV�DUH�QRW�VKRZLQJ�VLJQV�RI 

LQWR[LFDWLRQ�RQ�RXU�SUHPLVHV�DQG�WR�SUHYHQW�DQ\�EUHDFK�RI�WKH�ODZV�RU�SHQDOWLHV�IRU�LQWR[LFDWLRQ�EHLQJ�LVVXHG�WR�WKH�

PHPEHU��JXHVW�DQG�&OXE�VWDII�� 

 

$JDLQ��ZH�VWUHVV�WKDW�ZH�ZDQW�DOO�PHPEHUV�WR�FRPH�DQG�HQMR\�RXU�&OXE�EXW�EH�UHVSRQVLEOH�DQG�FRQVLGHU�RWKHUV�ZKLOVW�

KDYLQJ�D�JUHDW�WLPH� 

 

/DVWO\��,�ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�WKDQN�P\�WHDP��*UHJ�)ROOHWW�–�2SHUDWLRQV�0DQDJHU��0DUN�%RRNHU�–�)LQDQFH�0DQDJHU��6FRWW 

3DWWHQ�–�([HFXWLYH�&KHI�DQG�KLV�WHDP�IRU�WKHLU�GHGLFDWLRQ�LQ�SURYLGLQJ�JUHDW�TXDOLW\�IRRG�DQG�VHUYLFH��&LQG\�0F*RYHUQ��

RXU�YHU\�FRPSHWHQW�)XQFWLRQV�&RRUGLQDWRU�IRU�KHU�FRQWLQXDO�GHGLFDWLRQ�LQ�RXU�IXQFWLRQV��$OL�$OGHU��RXU�IDQWDVWLF 

0DUNHWLQJ�&RRUGLQDWRU�IRU�KHU�FRQWLQXDO�VXSSRUW��'DYH�3HUH]��RXU�KHDG�*UHHQNHHSHU�DQG�KLV�WHDP�IRU�SURYLGLQJ�JUHDW�

JUHHQV�IRU�RXU�PHPEHUV�WR�HQMR\��RXU�'XW\�0DQDJHUV��$QJHOD��$QQLH��-DVRQ�DQG�0LWFK�IRU�WKHLU�KDUG�ZRUN�DQG 

FRPPLWPHQW�WR�SURYLGLQJ�JUHDW�VHUYLFH�WR�RXU�PHPEHUV�DV�ZHOO�DV�DOO�RI�RXU�VWDII��ZLWKRXW�JUHDW�VWDII�ZH�FDQ¶W�SURYLGH�

WKH�JUHDW�VHUYLFH�ZH�GR�DQG�,�WKDQN�WKHP�DOO�IRU�WKHLU�HIIRUWV�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�%RDUG�DQG�PHPEHUV� 

 

3�/�.HOO\ 

*HQHUDO�0DQDJHU��-3 
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$ ��������QRWKHU�VXFFHVVIXO�\HDU�KDV�EHHQ�FRPSOHWHG�DW�RXU�&OXE�����QHZ�PHPEHUV� 

�����������KDYH�EHHQ�DFFHSWHG�LQ�WKLV�WLPH�ZKLOH�IUDFWLRQDOO\�PRUH�GLG�QRW�UHQHZ�WKHLU 

PHPEHUVKLSV��0DQ\�ZKRP�SUREDEO\�ZHUH�QRW�UHJXODU�ERZOHUV��:H�ZHOFRPH�RXU�QHZ�

PHPEHUV�DQG�WUXVW�WKDW�WKHLU�WLPH�ZLWK�XV�ZLOO�EH�D�PRVW�HQMR\DEOH�RQH��2XU�PHPEHUVKLS�

VWDQGV�DW�DSSUR[LPDWHO\�����PDOH�ERZOHUV� 

 

&RQJUDWXODWLRQV�WR�'LYLVLRQ���DQG���ZKR�ZRQ�'LVWULFW�IODJV�EXW�ZHUH�GHIHDWHG�DW�=RQH�

OHYHO�LQ�<DPED��%RWK�GLYLVLRQV�SOD\HG�DW�<DPED�RQ�WKH�VDPH�ZHHNHQG�ZKHUH�ERZOHUV�

GLG�RXU�&OXE�SURXG�DQG�WKRURXJKO\�HQMR\HG�WKH�WULS�WKDQNV�WR�FRQWULEXWRUV��WKH�UDIIOHV�DQG 

DVVLVWDQFH�IURP�WKH�%RDUG��$�ELJ�WKDQN�\RX�WR�DOO�ERZOHUV�ZKR�SOD\HG�SHQQDQWV�� 

PDQDJHUV��XPSLUHV��VHOHFWRUV�DQG�HYHU\RQH�ZKR�DVVLVWHG�� 

 

&RQJUDWXODWLRQV�WR�DOO�&KDPSLRQVKLS�ZLQQHUV�DQG�UXQQHUV-XS�DQG�WR�DOO�ZKR�SDUWLFLSDWHG�–�VRPH�QHZ�IRUPDWV�VHHP�WR�

EH�ZHOO�DFFHSWHG��LQFOXGLQJ�KDQGLFDS�HYHQWV��0DQ\�RI�RXU�ERZOHUV�DOVR�SDUWLFLSDWHG�LQ�'LVWULFW�DQG�=RQH�HYHQWV�ZLWK�

GLVWLQFWLRQ��0DQ\�WKDQNV�WR�6WXDUW�0LOHV�DQG�KLV�FRPPLWWHH�IRU�WKH�VPRRWK�UXQQLQJ�RI�WKHVH�HYHQWV�DQG�HVSHFLDOO\�IRU�

WKHLU�RUJDQLVDWLRQ�RI�WKH�YDULRXV�WRXUQDPHQWV��7KH�³.LQJ-1REOH�'D\´�ZDV�DQRWKHU�SOHDVDQW�RXWLQJ�ZLWK�.LQJ¶V�PHQ 

WDNLQJ�KRPH�WKH�WURSK\�WKLV�\HDU��3UHVLGHQW¶V�'D\�ZDV�DOVR�DQRWKHU�JUHDW�GD\�ZLWK�RYHU�����ERZOHUV�–�ORFDOV�DQG 

YLVLWRUV�DOLNH�WDNLQJ�WR�WKH�JUHHQV�DQG�HQMR\LQJ�ERWK�WKH�JDPH�RI�ERZOV�DQG�FDPDUDGHULH�� 

 

7KDQNV�WR�RXU�0HQ¶V�FRPPLWWHH��RXU�&(2��%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV��JUHHQNHHSHUV�DQG�VWDII�ZKR�DUH�DOO�PXFK�DSSUHFLDWHG�E\�

PHPEHUV��&RQJUDWXODWLRQV�WR�RXU�:RPHQ¶V�FRPPLWWHH�ZKR�RUJDQLVHG�WKH�ILQDOV�RI�WKH�:RPHQ¶V�6WDWH�3HQQDQWV��)RU�

VXFK�D�ODUJH�QXPEHU�RI�ERZOHUV�IURP�DOO�SDUWV�RI�WKH�VWDWH�WR�HQMR\�WKH�KRVWLQJ�E\�RXU�ODGLHV�VKRZV�ZKDW�D�ZRQGHUIXO�

RUJDQLVDWLRQ�KDG�EHHQ�DW�WKH�IRUH��&RQJUDWXODWLRQV�ODGLHV�DQG�DOO�ZKR�DVVLVWHG�LQ�WKLV�HQGHDYRXU��ZKLFK�FHUWDLQO\�SXW�

RXU�&OXE�RQ�WKH�PDS� 

 

,�KRSH�ZH�FDQ�FRQWLQXH�WR�KDYH�D�IULHQGO\�DQG�KDUPRQLRXV�&OXE�ZLWK�XQGHUVWDQGLQJ��SDWLHQFH�DQG�JRRGZLOO�DV 

VRPHWLPHV�WKLQJV�GRQ¶W�DOZD\V�JR�DV�SODQQHG��*UHDW�WR�KDYH�VR�PDQ\�YLVLWRUV�GXULQJ�WKH�ZLQWHU�ZKR�DUH�UHJXODUV�DQG�

UHPDLQ�DW�RXU�&OXE�IRU�VRPH�PRQWKV��:H�DUH�YHU\�IRUWXQDWH�WR�KDYH�WKLV�ZRQGHUIXO�&OXE��&DQ�ZH�GR�PRUH" 

 

3DXO�&URPSWRQ 

0HQ¶V�&OXE�3UHVLGHQW 
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7 ��������KH�SDVW����PRQWKV�KDV�UHVXOWHG�LQ�VRPH�FKDOOHQJHV��EXW�WKH�KRQRXU�RI�EHLQJ������������� 

��������\RXU�3UHVLGHQW�KDV�RXWZHLJKHG�WKH�QHJDWLYHV��DQG�,�ORRN�IRUZDUG�WR�LW�EHLQJ�RQZDUG�

DQG�XSZDUG�IURP�QRZ�RQ� 

 

2XU� ILQDO�GD\�RI�ERZOLQJ� IRU� WKH�:RPHQ¶V�&OXE�VDZ�D�VOLJKWO\�GLIIHUHQW� IRUPDW� IURP� WKH�

SDVW��³)XQ�ERZOV´�ZHUH�SOD\HG�DQG�VHYHUDO�RI�RXU�ODGLHV�KDG�WR�ZDUP�WKHLU�YRFDO�FKRUGV�

EHIRUH�UHFHLYLQJ�WKHLU�SUL]H�PRQH\��$�YHU\�HQMR\DEOH�PRUQLQJ�ZDV�KDG�E\�DOO�DQG���GD\V�

ODWHU�ZH�DFNQRZOHGJHG�WKH�DFKLHYHPHQWV�RI�RXU�ZLQQHUV�DQG�UXQQHUV-XS�IURP�WKURXJKRXW�

WKH�\HDU�DW�RXU�&KULVWPDV�3UHVHQWDWLRQ�'LQQHU�IXQFWLRQ� 

2QFH�DJDLQ��:HGJHWDLO�3DOOLDWLYH�&DUH�ZHUH�WKH�UHFLSLHQWV�RI�RXU�DQQXDO�FKDULW\�UDIIOH�DQG�WKH�SURFHHGV�ZHUH�KDQGHG�

RYHU�DW�WKDW�IXQFWLRQ��0DQ\�WKDQNV�WR�DOO�ZKR�VXSSRUWHG�WKLV�YHQWXUH�DQG�DVVLVWHG�E\�VHOOLQJ�WLFNHWV��³:LJV�IRU�:HQG\´�

ZDV�DOVR�WKH�UHFLSLHQW�RI�D�GRQDWLRQ�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�IURP�WKH�:RPHQ¶V�&OXE� 

 

6DQGUD�$NHUV�ZDV�DJDLQ� WKH� ³&KDPSLRQ�/DG\�%RZOHU�RI� WKH�<HDU´��&RQJUDWXODWLRQV�JR� WR�6DQGUD� IRU� WKLV�ZRQGHUIXO�

DFKLHYHPHQW��7R�DOO�RXU�ZLQQHUV�DQG�UXQQHUV-XS�LQ�WKH�YDULRXV�&KDPSLRQVKLSV�DQG�7RXUQDPHQWV�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�\HDU��

ZHOO�GRQH���$QG�WR�DOO�WKH�/DGLHV�ZKR�HQWHUHG�WKHVH�HYHQWV��WKDQN�\RX�IRU�\RXU�SDUWLFLSDWLRQ� 

 

2XU�&OXE�ZDV�UHSUHVHQWHG�LQ�'LYLVLRQV������DQG���LQ�WKH�'LVWULFW�3HQQDQW�&RPSHWLWLRQ�WKLV�\HDU��DQG�ZKLOH�ZH�ZHUH�QRW�

VXFFHVVIXO�LQ�ZLQQLQJ�D�IODJ��HYHU\RQH�LV�EHWWHU�IRU�WKH�H[SHULHQFH��+RSHIXOO\��QH[W�\HDU��ZLWK�WKH�PRRWHG�FKDQJHV�WR�EH�

LQWURGXFHG�E\�:%16:��WKH�FRPSHWLWLRQ�QXPEHUV�ZLOO�LPSURYH�DQG�VWDQGDUGV�ZLOO�HYHQ�RXW� 

 

:KLOH�WKH�3HQQDQW�FRPSHWLWLRQ�ZDV�QRW�VXFFHVVIXO�IRU�XV��ZH�GLG�KDYH���WHDPV��2SHQ�3DLUV�DQG�2SHQ�7ULSOHV� 

UHSUHVHQW�RXU�&OXE�DW�5HJLRQDO�OHYHO�LQ�WKH�6WDWH�&KDPSLRQVKLSV��&RQJUDWXODWLRQV�WR�WKHVH�ODGLHV�RQ�WKHLU�VXFFHVV�DQG�

ZH�ZLVK�RXU�2SHQ�3DLUV�WHDP�ZHOO�DV�WKH\�SURJUHVV�WR�WKH�6WDWH�SOD\-RIIV�LQ�7DPZRUWK�GXULQJ�6HSWHPEHU�WKLV�\HDU� 

 

7XHVGD\�0L[HG�%RZOV�KDV�PDLQWDLQHG�D�VWHDG\�OHYHO�RI�SDUWLFLSDWLRQ��DQG�P\�WKDQNV�WR�WKH�GLOLJHQW�PHPEHUV�ZKR 

FRQGXFW�WKLV�HYHQW�HDFK�ZHHN��7KH�FRPSHWLWLRQ�LV�HQMR\HG�E\�PDQ\��DV�LV�WKH�LQWURGXFWLRQ�RI�6DWXUGD\�DIWHUQRRQ�³RSHQ�

SDLUV´�IRU�WKRVH�LQWHUHVWHG��9LVLW-LQV�KDYH�EHHQ�QXPHURXV�DQG�ZHOO�VXSSRUWHG�E\�ERWK�WKH�:RPHQ¶V�DQG�0HQ¶V�&OXEV���

7KHVH�RFFDVLRQV�JLYH�HYHU\RQH�D�FKDQFH� WR�VKRZFDVH�RXU�&OXE��0\� WKDQNV�DOVR� WR� WKRVH�PHPEHUV�ZKR� UXQ� WKHVH�

HYHQWV��DV�ZHOO�DV�WR�WKRVH�ZKR�VXSSRUW�WKHP� 

 

7KH�KLJK�SRLQW�RI�RXU�\HDU�ZDV�WKH�KRVWLQJ�RI�WKH�:RPHQ¶V�6WDWH�3HQQDQW�ILQDOV��1RW�RQO\�ZDV�LW�D�JUHDW�H[SHULHQFH��

EXW� LW� HQDEOHG�XV� WR�VKRZFDVH�RXU�&OXE� IDFLOLWLHV�DQG�KRVSLWDOLW\��:H�ZLWQHVVHG���GD\V�RI�EULOOLDQW� ERZOLQJ��DOO�PDGH�

SRVVLEOH�E\�WKH�KDUG�ZRUN�DQG�GHGLFDWLRQ�RI�D�VPDOO�JURXS�RI�SHRSOH�RYHU�D�ORQJ�WLPH��,W�ZRXOG�EH�UHPLVV�RI�PH�QRW�WR�

PHQWLRQ�VRPH�LQGLYLGXDOV�LQ�SDUWLFXODU� 

· 2XU�*0��0U�3KLO�.HOO\�KDG�WKH�LQLWLDWLYH�DQG�GULYH�WR�VHFXUH�WKH�ILQDOV�LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�&DEDULWD�%HDFK� 

 3RWWVYLOOH�DQG�&XGJHQ� 

· $OL�$OGHU��0DUNHWLQJ��ZRUNHG�WLUHOHVVO\��LQ�SDUWLFXODU��FUHDWLQJ�D�SRUWIROLR�RI�WKH�GHWDLOV�RI�WKH�DWWHQGLQJ�&OXEV��DQG�

DOVR�HQVXUHG�WKDW�WKHVH�&OXEV�ZHUH�SURYLGHG�ZLWK�DOO�QHFHVVDU\�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHTXLUHG�RYHU�WKH���GD\V�RI 

 FRPSHWLWLRQ� 

· 2XU�6HFUHWDU\��0DXUHHQ�-DPHV��PDGH�KHUVHOI�DYDLODEOH�FRQWLQXRXVO\�ZKHQHYHU�WKHUH�ZDV�D�MRE�WR�EH�GRQH� 

 ZLWKRXW�KHVLWDWLRQ� 

 

2EYLRXVO\��LW�WDNHV�PRUH�WKDQ���SHRSOH�WR�SXOO�RII�DQ�HYHQW�OLNH�WKLV��DQG�,�PXVW�PDNH�PHQWLRQ�RI�WKH�HIIRUWV�RI�RXU� 



&KDLUPDQ��5D\�%UHHQ��DQG�KLV�IHOORZ�'LUHFWRUV�IRU�WKHLU�ZRUN�DQG�VXSSRUW��7KHUH�ZHUH�DOVR����YROXQWHHUV��ERWK�ODGLHV�

DQG�PHQ��ZKR�ZRUNHG�WLUHOHVVO\�IRU�WKH�GXUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�HYHQW��7KLV�ZLOO�KROG�XV�LQ�JRRG�VWHDG�IRU�QH[W�\HDU� 

 

6HSWHPEHU�ZLOO�KRSHIXOO\�VHH�D�QXPEHU�RI�RXU�ODGLHV�VHOHFWHG�LQ�WKH�7ZHHG�%\URQ�'LVWULFW�WHDP�WR�FRQWHVW�WKH 

,QWHU-'LVWULFW�6KLHOG�FRPSHWLWLRQ�DW�&RQGRQJ��,Q�2FWREHU��.LQJVFOLII�ZLOO�EH�UHSUHVHQWHG�E\���ODGLHV�DW�WKH�'LVWULFW�6KLHOG�

FRPSHWLWLRQ��,�ZLVK�JRRG�ERZOLQJ�WR�WKRVH�ZKR�DUH�VHOHFWHG�LQ�WKHVH�WHDPV��DQG�DOVR�WR�WKRVH�ZKR�DUH 

SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�LQ�WKH�6XPPHU�/HDJXH�ZKLFK�ZLOO�EH�KHOG�IURP�2FWREHU�WKURXJK�WR�'HFHPEHU� 

 

,Q�FRQFOXVLRQ��,�ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�WDNH�WKH�RSSRUWXQLW\�WR�WKDQN�0U�3KLO�.HOO\�DQG�DOO�KLV�VWDII��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�*UHHQNHHSHUV��

IRU�WKHLU�KDUG�ZRUN��0\�WKDQNV�DOVR�JR�WKH�%RDUG�IRU�WKHLU�VXSSRUW�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�\HDU��DQG�WR�WKH�YROXQWHHUV�ZKR�FRQ�

GXFW�ERWK�7XHVGD\�DQG�:HGQHVGD\�PRUQLQJ�ERZOV�IL[WXUHV��,�DOVR�WKDQN�P\�0DQDJHPHQW�FRPPLWWHH��93�5RE\Q�)XOOHU��

6HFUHWDU\�0DXUHHQ�-DPHV��7UHDVXUHU�*OHQGD�'HDQ��DQG�0DWFK�-HQQ\�*UHHQEDFN�DQG�$QQH�0XOOHQ��IRU�\RXU�VXSSRUW��

ZRUN�HWKLF�DQG�GLOLJHQFH�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�\HDU��,W�KDV�EHHQ�D�SOHDVXUH�WR�EH�\RXU�3UHVLGHQW�IRU�WKH�SDVW����PRQWKV� 

 

 

5RE\Q�:LFNEROG 

:RPHQ¶V�&OXE�3UHVLGHQW 
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Directors' Report
30 June 2019

The directors present their report on Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2019.

1. General information

Information on directors

The names of each person who has been a director during the year and to the date of this report are:

Eileen Taylor Ceased 28/10/2018

Qualifications Retired State Registered Nurse, Business and Farming Management,
Cert IV in Human Resources

Experience Board Member 12 years

Ronald Graham Ceased 28/10/2018

Qualifications Retired Police Sergeant, Director of Cabarita Sports & Engadine
Bowls Club

Experience Board Member 10 years

Sandra Akers Ceased 28/10/2018

Qualifications Retired Bookkeeper

Experience Board Member 6 years

Robert Jack Ceased 28/10/2018

Qualifications Retired Club Manager

Experience Board Member 6 years

Raymond Breen

Qualifications Retired Account Manager

Experience Board Member 5 years

Barrie Butler

Qualifications Retired Transport Officer

Experience Board Member 3 years

Phillip Perkiss

Qualifications Electrical Contractor

Experience Board Member 3 years

Julie O'Connor Appointed 28/10/2018

Qualifications Management Rights

Experience Board Member 1 year

Laurie Gillespie Appointed 28/10/2018

Qualifications Advance Life Support Officier

Experience Board Member 1 year

Tom Eadie Appointed 28/10/2018

Qualifications Public Services

Experience Board Member 1 year
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Directors' Report
30 June 2019

1. General information

Information on directors

Bevan Lamb Appointed 28/10/2018

Qualifications Sales Manager

Experience Board Member 1 year

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.

Company secretary

The following person held the position of Company secretary at the end of the financial year:

Mr Phillip Kelly

Mr Phillip Kelly has been the company secretary since 7 November 2008. 

Significant changes in state of affairs

No significant changes in the Company's state of affairs occurred during the financial year.

Principal activities

The principal activities of Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited during the financial year have been to manage, conduct, control
and to promote the game of Bowls predominately in the Kingscliff District, to provide for members and members’
guests a social and sporting club with all the usual facilities of a club including any necessary financial aid, residential
or other accommodation, liquid and other refreshment, poker machines and other forms of gaming devices, and
provision for sporting and other social and recreational facilities.

No significant changes in the nature of the Company's activities occurred during the financial year.

Objectives

The Company's short and long term objectives are to ensure that the company’s financial position remains sound in
both the short and long term to allow members and patrons to participate in lawn bowls and other sporting and social
activities for many years to come.

Strategy for achieving the objectives

To achieve these objectives, the Company has adopted the following strategies:

 carefully monitor income and expenditure to improve operating profit;

 introduce new ideas that will attract more people to the club to improve income streams;

 promote the above objectives at every opportunity; and

 look at commercial opportunities that will improve the company’s asset base and provide additional income on

a long term basis for the company. 
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Directors' Report
30 June 2019

1. General information

How principal activities assisted in achieving the objectives

The principal activities assisted the Company in achieving its objectives by providing quality facilities and by continually
looking at ways to attract participants in lawn bowls and other social and sporting activities. This has provided the
company with an excellent source of income so the company continues to make improvements and remain viable into
the future. The company has to ensure that it continues to provide a quality venue for members and visitors to enjoy
lawn bowls and promotes its facilities in and around the Kingscliff district and beyond.

Performance measures

The following measures are used within the Company to monitor performance:

 monitoring of profit;

 monitoring of patron satisfaction;

 monitoring of key performance indicators (e.g. gross profit, profit to turnover, profit to income percentages).

Members' guarantee

Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited is a company limited by guarantee. In the event of, and for the purpose of winding up of
the company, the amount capable of being called up from each member and any person or association who ceased to
be a member in the year prior to the winding up, is limited to $ 2 for all members, subject to the provisions of the
company's constitution.

At 30 June 2019 the collective liability of members was $ 9,102 (2018: $ 9,120).

Payments and other benefits

No Directors have a financial interest in any contract or proposed contract with the Company.
In accordance with Chapter 2E of the Corporations Act, since the end of the previous financial year, except for minor
services rendered in the ordinary course of business, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit
(other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or receivable by Directors shown in the
notes to the financial statements or the fixed salary of a fulltime employee of the Company) by reason of a contract
made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which they are a member or with a
Company in which they have a substantial financial interest.

2. Operating results and review of operations for the year

Operating results

The profit of the Company after providing for income tax amounted to $ 25,568 (2018: $ 172,437).

Dividends paid or recommended

The constitution of the company prohibits the distribution of profits to its members. Accordingly, no dividend or
distributions were or could be paid to the members.
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Directors' Report
30 June 2019

Operating results and review of operations for the year

Review of operations

A review of the operations of the Company during the financial year and the results of those operations show an
overall increase in the financial position of the Company for the year ending 30 June 2019. It is the opinion of the
Directors that the Company's operations performed well in the current economic environment.

3. Other items

Events after the reporting date

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Company
in future financial years.

Future developments, Prospects and Business Strategies

There are no planned changes in the operations of the company which will significantly affect the results of the
operations in the financial years subsequent to the financial year.

Environmental issues

The Company's operations are subject to various environmental regulations under both Commonwealth and State
Legislation.

The board believes that the Company has adequate systems in place for the management of its environmental
requirements and is not aware of any breach of those environmental requirements as they apply to the parent
company. 

Meetings of directors

During the financial year, 24 ordinary meetings and 6 special  meetings of directors (including committees of directors)
were held. Attendances by each director during the year were as follows:

Directors'
Meetings

Special Meetings

Number
eligible to

attend
Number
attended

Number
eligible to

attend
Number
attended

Eileen Taylor 8 8 - -

Ronald Graham 8 8 - -

Sandra Akers 8 8 - -

Robert Jack 8 8 - -

Raymond Breen 24 24 6 6

Barrie Butler 24 24 6 6

Phillip Perkiss 24 23 6 5

Julie O'Connor 16 14 6 4

Laurie Gillespie 16 16 6 6

Tom Eadie 16 15 6 6

Bevan Lamb 16 16 6 6
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Directors' Report
30 June 2019

Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors

No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the financial year, for any
person who is or has been an officer or auditor of Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited.

Proceedings on behalf of company

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any
proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all
or any part of those proceedings.

The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.

Auditor's independence declaration

The lead auditor's independence declaration in accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, for the
year ended 30 June 2019 has been received and can be found on page 6 of the financial report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

Director:...............................................................................
Raymond Breen

Director:...............................................................................
Phillip Perkiss

Dated 30 August 2019
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the
Corporations Act 2001 to the Directors of Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2019, there have been:

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to
the audit; and

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

WCA Audit & Assurance Services Pty Ltd
Authorised Audit Company

Graham Smith
Director

30 August 2019

LISMORE
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note

2019

$

2018

$

Revenue 8,915,902 8,112,987

Changes in inventories of finished goods
and work in progress 22,066 (7,557)

Raw materials and consumables used (1,924,831) (1,701,956)

Employee benefits expense (2,787,767) (2,534,794)

Depreciation and amortisation expense (534,348) (451,985)

Gaming Machine Taxes & Levies (662,044) (655,752)

Raffles, Promotions & Advertising (567,277) (553,209)

Entertainment & Other Activities (175,199) (166,349)

Members Expenses & Discounts (242,738) (206,394)

Loss on disposal of assets (17,914) (5,245)

Other expenses (1,876,027) (1,613,842)

Finance costs (124,252) (43,465)

Profit before income tax 25,571 172,439

Income tax expense - -

Total comprehensive income for the
year 25,571 172,439

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As At 30 June 2019

Note

2019

$

2018

$

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 8 220,225 212,278

Trade and other receivables 10 74,960 3,027

Inventories 9 105,003 83,564

Other assets 11 54,309 62,857

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 454,497 361,726

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 12 6,373,301 6,038,905

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 6,373,301 6,038,905

TOTAL ASSETS 6,827,798 6,400,631

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 13 845,850 767,888

Borrowings 14 366,870 161,563

Employee benefits 16 260,017 312,416

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,472,737 1,241,867

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Borrowings 14 488,524 323,672

Employee benefits 16 83,359 77,483

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 571,883 401,155

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,044,620 1,643,022

NET ASSETS 4,783,178 4,757,609

EQUITY

Reserves 3,285,567 3,285,567

Retained earnings 1,497,611 1,472,042

4,783,178 4,757,609

TOTAL EQUITY 4,783,178 4,757,609

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

2019

Note

Retained
Earnings

$

Asset
Realisation

Reserve

$

Capital
Profits

Reserve

$

Total

$

Balance at 1 July 2018 1,472,042 3,257,226 28,341 4,757,609

Profit/(loss) attributable to members 25,569 - - 25,569

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners

Balance at 30 June 2019 1,497,611 3,257,226 28,341 4,783,178

2018

Note

Retained
Earnings

$

Asset
Realisation

Reserve

$

Capital
Profits

Reserve

$

Total

$

Balance at 1 July 2017 1,299,603 3,257,226 28,341 4,585,170

Profit/(loss) attributable to members 172,439 - - 172,439

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners

Balance at 30 June 2018 1,472,042 3,257,226 28,341 4,757,609

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note

2019

$

2018

$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from customers 9,731,451 8,934,716

Payments to suppliers and
employees (9,111,031) (8,041,327)

Interest paid (95,972) (34,817)

Net cash provided by/(used in)
operating activities 524,448 858,572

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (886,659) (918,709)

Net cash used by investing activities (886,659) (918,709)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:

Payment of finance lease liabilities (259,481) (32,805)

Proceeds from borrowings 616,934 -

Net cash used by financing activities 357,453 (32,805)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents held (4,758) (92,942)

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 108,815 201,759

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
financial year 8 104,057 108,817

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

The financial statements are for Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited as an individual entity. Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited is a not-
for-profit Company limited by guarantee, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. 

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.

1 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with the
Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board
(AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001. The entity is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes under
Australian Accounting Standards.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in financial
statements containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions. Material accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below and have been consistently
applied unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements, with the exception of cashflow information, have been prepared on an accrual basis and are
based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets,
financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the
nearest dollar.

The financial statements were authorised for issue on the 30th of August 2019 by the directors of the entity.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Income Tax

The Company is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.
Accordingly no income tax is payable by the entity.

The Company is of the opinion that it is subject to income tax.

(b) Revenue and other income

The Kingscliff Beach Bowls Club recognises revenue on a basis that reflects the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange
for those goods or services. The Company achieves this by identifying all performance obligations, determining
an appropriate transaction price and recognising any revenue as and when control of the performance
obligation is transferred.

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised on transfer of goods to the customer as this is deemed to be the point in time when
performance obligations are transferred.

Rendering of services

Revenue from the performance obligation in relation to rendering of services is recognised upon delivery of the
service to the customer.
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(c) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST.

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
classified as operating cash flows.

(d) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Bank overdrafts also form part of cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows and are
presented within current liabilities on the statement of financial position.

(e) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Items of property, plant and equipment acquired for nil or nominal consideration have been recorded at the
acquisition date fair value.

Where the cost model is used, the asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. Costs include purchase price, other directly attributable costs and the initial estimate of the
costs of dismantling and restoring the asset, where applicable.

Land and buildings

Land and buildings are measured using the cost model.

Plant and equipment 

Plant and equipment are measured using the cost model.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets
useful life to the Company, commencing when the asset is ready for use.

Leased assets and leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the
lease or their estimated useful life.

12



Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(f) Property, plant and equipment

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below:

Fixed asset class Depreciation rate

Buildings 1.5% - 2.5%

Plant and Equipment 5.0% - 33.33%

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset
is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.

(g) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events,
for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably
measured. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the outflow required to settle
the obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the unwinding of the discount is taken to finance costs in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

(h) Employee benefits

Provision is made for the Company's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by
employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly settled within
one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

Employee benefits expected to be settled more than one year after the end of the reporting period have been
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. In
determining the liability, consideration is given to employee wage increases and the probability that the
employee may satisfy vesting requirements. Cashflows are discounted using market yields on high quality
corporate bond rates incorporating bonds rated AAA or AA by credit agencies, with terms to maturity that match
the expected timing of cashflows. Changes in the measurement of the liability are recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Leases

Leases of fixed assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset, but
not the legal ownership that are transferred to the Company are classified as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalised by recording an asset and a liability at the lower of the amounts equal to the fair
value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed
residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest
expense for the period.

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all of the risks and benefits remain with the lessor,
are charged as expenses on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term. 

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over
the life of the lease term.
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(j) Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the company commits itself
to either purchase or sell the asset.

Financial instruments (except for trade receivables) are initially measured at fair value plus transactions costs,
except where the instrument is classified 'at fair value through profit and loss' in which case transactions costs
are expensed to profit or loss immediately.

Trade receivables are initially measured at the transaction price if the trade receivables do not contain
significant financing component.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets other than those designated and effective as hedging instruments are classified upon initial
recognition into the following categories:
- amortised cost
- equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
- equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within
finance income or finance costs, except for impairment of trade receivables which are disclosed with other
expenses.
Measurement is on the basis of two primary criteria:
- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset
- the business model for managing the financial asset

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are measure at amortised cost if the asset meets the following conditions (and are not
designated as fair value through profit and loss):
- the financial asset is managed solely to collect contractual cash flows
- the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs
unless the Company designated a financial liability at fair value through profit and loss.
Non-derivative financial liabilities other than financial grantees are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. All interest related charges and, if applicable, changes in the instruments
fair values that are reported in profit or loss are included within finance costs or finance income.

Impairment of financial assets
The impairment requirements as applicable under AASB 9 use more forward looking information to recognise
expected credit losses. Executed credit losses are the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the
expected life of a financial instrument. A credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due and all cash flows expected to be received, all discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
financial instrument.
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

3 New Accounting Standards and Interpretations Adopted During the Year

AASB 9 - Financial instruments

AASB 9 Financial Instruments replaces AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. AASB 9
makes major changes to the previous guidance on the classification and measurement of financial assets and
introduces an "expected credit loss" model for impairment of financial assets. The most significant impact of the
replacement of AASB 139 by AASB 9 for the company has been the reclassification of assets previously determined
as "held to maturity" to now be classified as "amortised cost"

There has been no material impact on the financial statements as a result of adopting this standard.

4 New Accounting Standards Issued and Not Yet Effective

AASB 16 - Leases

AASB 16 Leases will replace AASB 117 Leases and other related interpretations. The new lease standard will be
effective from the annual reporting period commencing 1 July 2019. All leases should be recognised on the balance
sheet at inception of the lease with the exception of short-term leases (less than 23 months) and leases of low-value
assets. The lessee must recognised a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability in the amount of the
present value of the lease payments. Subsequent to this initial measurement, the right-of-use asset is depreciated
over the lease term, whilst lease payments are separated into a principal and interest portion to wind up the lease
liability over the lease term.

In addition AASB 1058 Income for Not-For-Profit entities and amendments to AASB 16 provide a temporary option
permitting not-for-profit entities to initially recognised right-of-use assets arising from pepper-corn leases at cost or fair
value.

The directors are currently investigating the valuation of the land the premises currently occupies.

The adoption of AASB 16 Leases will result in an increase in the value of the non-current assets of the Company and
current and non-current liabilities the overall impact to the profit and loss is not expected to be material.

AASB 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers

The impact of adopting AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers would result in no significant impact to the
financial statements.

5 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding
assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates.

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.

Key estimates - impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Company assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions specific to the
Company that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are reassessed using
value-in-use calculations which incorporate various key assumptions.

15



Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

5 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Key estimates - provisions

As described in the accounting policies, provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period. These estimates are made taking into account a
range of possible outcomes and will vary as further information is obtained.
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

6 Revenue and Other Income

2019

$

2018

$

Sales revenue

- sale of goods 8,783,807 7,979,218

Finance income

- interest 7 15

Other revenue

- other 132,088 133,754

Total Revenue 8,915,902 8,112,987

7 Expenses

The result for the year includes the following specific expenses:

2019

$

2018

$

Cost of sales 1,902,765 1,709,513

Other expenses:

Employee benefits expense 2,787,767 2,534,794

Depreciation and amortisation
expense 534,348 451,985

Gaming Machine Taxes & Levies 662,044 655,752

Raffles, Promotions & Advertising 567,277 553,209

Entertainment & Other Activities 175,199 166,349

Members Expenses & Discounts 242,738 206,394

Loss on disposal of assets 17,914 5,245

Other expenses 1,876,027 1,613,842

Finance costs 124,252 43,465

Total expenses 8,890,331 7,940,548

8 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2019

$

2018

$

Cash at bank and in hand 220,225 212,278

220,225 212,278

Reconciliation of cash

Cash and Cash equivalents reported in the statement of cash flows are reconciled to the equivalent items in the
statement of financial position as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 220,225 212,278

Bank overdrafts 14 (116,168) (103,463)

Balance as per statement of
cash flows 104,057 108,815
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

9 Inventories

2019

$

2018

$

CURRENT

At cost:

Raw Materials and Stores 105,003 83,564

TOTAL INVENTORIES 105,003 83,564

10 Trade and Other Receivables

2019

$

2018

$

CURRENT

Trade receivables 74,960 3,027

Total current trade and other
receivables 74,960 3,027

Impairment of receivables

The Company applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses prescribed by AASB 9, which 
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables.  To measure the expected credit 
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
Not withstanding adopting the simplified approach under AASB 9, there has been no matieral change in the loss 
allowance provisons as at 30 June 2019 incorporating forward looking information.

11 Other Assets

2019

$

2018

$

CURRENT

Prepayments 50,909 62,857

Bonds receivable 3,400 -

54,309 62,857
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

12 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings

At fair value 6,993,403 6,961,425

Accumulated depreciation (3,163,932) (2,989,979)

Total buildings 3,829,471 3,971,446

Total land and buildings 3,829,471 3,971,446

Plant and Equipment

At cost 4,999,297 4,619,358

Accumulated depreciation (3,114,613) (2,995,130)

Total plant and equipment 1,884,684 1,624,228

Leasehold Improvements

At cost 620,035 600,420

Accumulated amortisation (175,388) (157,189)

Total leasehold improvements 444,647 443,231

Capitalised Leased Assets

Under lease 242,762 -

Accumulated amortisation (28,263) -

Total capitalised leased assets 214,499 -

Total plant and equipment 2,543,830 2,067,459

Total property, plant and
equipment 6,373,301 6,038,905

(a) Movements in Carrying Amounts

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and
the end of the current financial year:

Buildings

$

Plant and
Equipment

$

Improvements

$

Leased Assets

$

Total

$

Year ended 30
June 2019

Balance at the
beginning of year 3,971,446 1,624,227 443,231 - 6,038,904

Additions 149,753 474,529 19,615 242,762 886,659

Disposals - (17,914) - - (17,914)

Depreciation
expense (173,953) (313,935) (18,199) (28,261) (534,348)

Balance at the
end of the year 3,947,246 1,766,907 444,647 214,501 6,373,301
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

13 Trade and Other Payables

Note

2019

$

2018

$

Current

Trade payables 385,772 355,151

Amounts received in advance 53,381 38,677

GST payable 116,515 101,048

Sundry payables and accrued expenses 290,184 273,012

845,852 767,888

14 Borrowings

2019

$

2018

$

CURRENT

Secured liabilities:

Bank overdraft 116,168 103,463

Other loans 104,073 58,100

Silver chef residual values 146,629 -

Total current borrowings 366,870 161,563

2019

$

2018

$

NON-CURRENT

Secured liabilities:

Total non-current borrowings 488,524 323,672

Total borrowings 855,394 485,235

The following security has been offered in respect of interest bearing liabilities:
- Registered mortgage debenture over the assets and undertakings of Kingscliff Beach Bowls Club Ltd for 
bank overdraft, bank loan and equipment purchase loans.

15 Reserves

(a) Asset realisation reserve

The asset realisation reserve records revaluations of non-current assets.

(b) Capital profits reserve

The capital profits reserve is an accumulation of the capital profits derived by the Company.
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

16 Employee Benefits

2019

$

2018

$

CURRENT

Provision for employee benefits 260,017 312,416

260,017 312,416

NON-CURRENT

Provision for employee benefits 83,359 77,483

83,359 77,483

17 Events after the end of the Reporting Period

The financial report was authorised for issue on 30 August 2019 by the Board of Directors.

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Company
in future financial years.

18 Capital and Leasing Commitments

(a) Operating leases

Minimum lease payments under non-
cancelable operating leases:

- between one year and five years - 6,354

- 6,354

Operating leases are in place for office equipment and normally have a term between 1 and 5 years.
Lease payments are increased on an annual basis to reflect market rentals.

Land Lease and Car Park License
The company's business operates on leasehold land (Portion 468 being special lease 81432) with access to the
club via Car Park (License S34A 497256).
Special lease 81432 is for a perpetual term for recreation (Bowling Green) and erection of Buildings
(Clubhouse).
Future years rental are subject to market value review by the NSW Department of Lands less any
adjustment/waivers provided to the company as a not for profit sporting organisation. 

Special Lease Annual Rent 156,305 152,949

Car Park License Annual Rent 51,096 49,998

Total 207,401 202,947

Finance Leases

Silver Chef Residual Values 146,629 -
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

19 Key Management Personnel Remuneration

The total remuneration paid to key management personnel of the Company is $ 438,970 (2018: $ 418,249).

20 Members' Guarantee

The Company is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a Company limited by guarantee. If the
Company is wound up, the constitution states that each member is required to contribute a maximum of $ 2 each
towards meeting any outstanding obligations of the Company. At 30 June 2019 the number of members was 4,551
(2018: 4,560).

21 Contingencies

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company did not have any contingencies at 30 June 2019 (30 June 2018:None).

22 Related Parties

From time to time the Directors of the Company, or director of related entities may purchase/supply goods or services
from/to the Company these purchases/supplies are on the same terms and conditions as those entered into by other
company employees, customers, members or suppliers.

23 Statutory Information

The registered office and principal place of business of the company
is:

Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

131 Marine Parade

KINGSCLIFF NSW 2487

24 Financial Risk Management

The Company's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, accounts receivable and payable, bank
loans and overdrafts and leases.

The total for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 139 as detailed in the
accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows:

2019

$

2018

$

Cash and cash equivalents 220,225 212,278

Trade and other receivables 74,960 3,027

Total financial assets 295,185 215,305

Trade and other payables 792,470 729,211

Borrowings 827,113 485,235

22



Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Directors' Declaration

The directors of the Company declare that:

1. The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 7 to 22, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001
and:

a. comply with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements; and

b. give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2019 and of the performance for the year ended on
that date of the Company.

2. In the directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Director ...........................................................................................................

Raymond Breen

Director ...........................................................................................................

Phillip Perkiss

Dated 30 August 2019
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Independent Audit Report to the members of Kingscliff Bowls Club
Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited (the Company), which comprises the statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2019, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors' declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Company is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

 (i) giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 30 June 2019 and of its financial performance for
the year ended; and

 (ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Corporations
Regulations 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the directors
of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor's report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Corporations Act 2001 and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
so.
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Kingscliff Bowls Club Limited

Independent Audit Report to the members of Kingscliff Bowls Club
Limited

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report.

Graham Smith
Director

Dated this 30th day of August 2019
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